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JNER1M REVIEW REPORT ON INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATİON
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See Note 1. of Section three)

To the Board of Directors of Pasha Bank A.Ş.;

Introduction

We have reviewed the unconsolidated statement of financial position of Pasha Bank A.Ş. (“the Bank”) at 31
March 2016 and the related unconsolidated income statement, unconsolidated statement of income and expense
items under shareholders’ equity, unconsoiidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, unconsolidated
statement of cash flows anda summary of signifıcant accounting policies and other explanatoıy notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements for the three-month-peflod then ended. The Bank Management is
responsible for the prepantion and fair presentation of interim fınancial statements in accordance with the
“Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” published in the Ofticial
Ga2ette no.26333 dated 1 November 2006, and other regulations on accounting records of Banks published by
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency and circulars and interpretations published by Banking Regulation
and Supervision Authority, (together referred as “BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation”) and Turkish
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” for those matters not regulated by BRSA Legislation.
Our responsibility k to express a conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, “Limited
Review of Irnerim Financial Information Performed by the lndependent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of
interim fınancial information consists of making inquiries, primariiy of persons responsible for fınancial
reponing process, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim financial
information is substantially less in scope than an independent audit performed in accordnnce with the
[ndependeat Auditing Standards and the objective of which is to express an opinion on the fınancial statements.
Consequently, a review of the interim financial information does not provide assurance that the audit firm wili be
aware of alt signiftcant matters which would have been identifıed in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanyin
unconsolidated fınancial statements do not give a true view of the fınancial position of Pasha Bank A.Ş. nt 31
March 2016 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the three-month-period then ended in alI
aspects in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation.

Report on other rcgulatory requirements arising from legislation

Hased on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial information
provided in the accompanying interim annual report in Section yIl, are not consistent with the unconsolidated
financial statemenis and disclosures in alI material respects.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank as of December 31, 2015 and March 31, 2015 vere audited and reviewed
by another independent audit [km, who expressed an unqualifıed opinion and conclusion in their audit and
review reports dated Febmary 22, 2016 and May 6,2015 respectively.
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Additional paragraph for convenidnce translalion to English:

As explained in detail in Note 1 of Section Three, the effects of differences between accounting principles and
standards set out by regulations in conformity with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation) and Turkish
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” except for the matters regulated by BRSA Legislation,
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying unconsolidated financial
statements are to be distributed and international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been
çuantifled in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements are not intended ta present the financial position, results of operations and
changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generaliy accepted in
such countries and IFRS.

Güney Bagımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
of EmstYoung Global Limited

istanbul, 6 May 2016
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
EN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE E OF SECTEON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.Ş.
NOTES TO FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts am exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL) unless othençise stated.)

SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATİON

Bank’s foundation date, start-up statute, history about the changes in this mentioned statute:

Bank’s commercial title Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.
Reporting Period 1 January -31 March 2016
Address of the Bank’s Headquarters A.O.S. 55. Sokak No:2 42 Maslak Ofıs 3 Kat:7

34398 Maslak Istanbul, Türkiye
Telephone (0212)705 8900
Fax (0212)3450712
Website www.nashabank.com.tr
E-mail iııth1Dashabank.com.tr

PASHA Yatırım Bankası A.Ş. (“Bank”. “PASHA Bank”) has been permitted by the decree no. 87/1 1898
dated 17.06.1987 by the Council of Ministers pursuant to the Banking Law No. 3182 (repealed) and the
Bank has been established under the title of Yatırım Bank A.Ş. headquartered in Istanbul under the
Foreign Investment Promotion Law. The establishment of the Bank was permined by the Ministry of
Industry and Trade on the date of21.12.I987. the Articles ofAssociation of the Bank was approved by
the decision no. 1987/5087 dated 12.25.1987 of the 1 st Commercial Court of Istanbul, and it was
registered with the Istanbul Trade Registıy Offlce under the no. 240320 on the date of25. 12.1987 and
published in the Turkish Trade Registıy Gazene no. 1924 and dated 30 December 1987. Commencing its
investment banking activities on the date of 1 March 1988, the Bank has been operating as of3 1 Marclı
2016 through its head offlce in Istanbul only and has no branches.

IL Explanation about the Bank’s capital structure, shareholders of the Bank who are in charge of the
management and/er auditing of the Bank directly or indirectly, changes in these matters (ifany)
and the group the Bank belongs to:

With the decision taken by TAIB Bank B.S.C. (e) - previous parent of the Bank- regarding the sahe of its
shares in the Bank, a share purehase agreement was signed between the Aksoy Holding A.Ş. and
previous parent of the Bank on 13 May 2013. Upon the Banking Reguhation and Supervision Ageney
(“BRSA”)’s approvah dated 26 June 2013, Aksoy Holding A.Ş. acquired the 99.4689% of the shares of
the Bank. With the decision taken in the extraordinarv general assembiy meeting of the Bank dated 31
July 2013 and numbered 32. share transfer transaction has been npproved. The share transfer from
previous parent of the Bank to Aksoy Holding A.Ş. has been completed as nt 2 August 2013.

in the extmordinarv general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 31 October 2013, it was decided to
increase the paid-in capital of the Bank to from TL 37.000 to TL 39.000. The paid-in capitah of the Bank
was increased to 39.000 TL in accordance with the BRSA’s approval as at 13 November 2013. In the
extmordinan’ general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 21 November 2013. it was decided to
inerease the paid-in capital of the Bank to Umm TL 39.000 to TL 80.000. The paid-in capitah of the Bank
was inereased to 80.000 TL in aceordance with the BRSA’s approval as at 29 November 2013.

PASI-IA Bank OJSC and Aksoy Holding A.Ş. has agreed on transferring the majority shares of the
Bank.Acquisition ofTL 28,795,121 of the Bank’s capitah and increase in the paid-in capital from TL
80,000 to TL 255,000 upon the Acquisition vere approved by the BRSA’s decision dated 26 December
2014. And numbered 6137. The capital inerease cash from TL 80,000 to TL 175,000 has been
completed.



CONVENIENCL TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLJY ANNOUNCED
FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEL NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM HANK A.Ş.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are exprcssed in thousands ofTurkish Lira CTL”) unless oıhen%isc sıatcd.)

GENERAL INFORMATİON (Conünued)

Paid-in capital inerease from TL 175,000 to TL 255,000, approval of the share transfer and changing the
Bank’5 title as “Pasha Yatırım Bankası A.Ş.’ Iıave been approved in the extra ordinaıy general assembly
of the Bank dated 27 January 2015.

The ehange of Bank’s tirle as “PashaYatırım Bankası A.Ş.” registered on 2 Mareh 2015 and announced
on Turkish Trade Registn Gazette dated 6 March 2015 and numbered 8773.

Acquisition of remaining 51,000 shares of Aksoy Holding A.Ş. by PASELA Bank OJSC by inereasing
Pasha Bank OSSC shares from %79.9 196 to %99.9W6 has been approved by the BRSA’s resolııtion
dated 23 December 2015 and numbered 18038.

As of24 December 2015, the share transfer vas aceounted in the statutory accounting records with the
Board decision numbered 2015/1 10.

The pannership structure of the Parent Bank as of3 1 December 2015, is stated below:

Partnership structure of the Bank as of3 1 Mareh 2016, is stated below:

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Vice President of the Board ofDirectorstl)
lndependent Member of the Board of Directorsi
Member of the Audit Comminee

Independent Member of the Board of Directorsl
Chairman of the Audit Comminee
Member of the Board of Directorsi
General Manager
Member of the Board of Directorss
Member of the Board of Directors
lndependent Member of the Board of Directors
Assistant General Manager

(1) As of3O March 2016, Agha Ali Kamalov is assigned as Chairman ofthe Board of Directors , Jalal Gasimov
k assigned as Vice President of the Board of Direclors with the Board decision numbered 2016122

As of3O March 2016 Saffet Batu Aksoy left from the Board of Direetors with the board decision
numbered 20 16/19.

The shares of the above individuals in the Bank are insignifieant.

İİ’.

t Capıtali — Share
PASHA BankOJSC 254,795 99.919(
Other 205 %0.080L
Total : 255,000:

Eıplanation on the Board of Directors, members of the audit committce, president and executive
vice presidents, ehanges in these matters (il’ auy) and shares of the Bank they possess:

Share
Title Name Education Percentage

Agha-AIi Kamalov
Jalal Gasımov
Necip Süreyya Serdengeçti

PhD
Postgraduate
Postgraduate

Mesut Özdinç Postgmduate

Hikmet Cenk Eynehan Postgraduate

Shahin Mammadov
Taleh Kazimov
Adnan Aykol
Ali Ihsan Tokkuzun

Postgraduate
Postgraduate
G radua(e
Postaraduate

1
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PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.Ş.
NOTES TO FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCU 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

-_______________

GENERAL INFORMATİON (Continued)

IV. Explanation on shareholders having control shares:

Explanation on shareholders having control shares of the Bank as of3 1 March 2016, k stated below;

Share
Amounts Share 1 Paid-in L’npnid

Name/Commercial title (nominal)1 percentage - Capital (nominal),
52.877 jŞ95 2Ador Ltd. 76.439 %29.98 76,439

Arif Pashayev 25.380. %999. 25480

V. Information on the Bank’s senice type and ficid of operations:

The Bank operates as an investment bank and as of 31 March 2016 the Bank has 31 employees
(31 December20l5: 31).

Vİ. Existing or Potential, Actual or Legal obstacles on İmmediate Equitv Transfer Behvcen the Bank
and its subsidiaries or Repayment of the Debt:

None.

3
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSİTION
AT3İ MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of TurLish Lira <“TL”) unless ott envise stated.)

1 STATEMENT OF_FINANCİAL_POSITION_(Continued)
, Curreol Yeni Pdor Pedod: LIABILrFIES Note 31 Marrh 2016 31 December 2015‘

Seclion
ve-!I)TL FCTotai TLFC9F’9ŞT

.•1
..

1.2 t Other
. . ‘

.J! .LTRADING ü,_,z -_____ ,_flŞ

JğL

008 S1 .2!!İ!,..,.LMPN!MA .JY1
.41 FundsfromlnterbankMoneyMuıke(

-

- - - -42 — ğğqm
. .... -

Ş,, Pre vided Un der Rprc ha !çj!L__.__ Jt. — ..j91ŞL4 . ._JML4 -.x,__
— ,JŞL.......-5.1 UiIIs

-5.2 Asset Barked Seeurities
. . .

fl_!9!ı___________________Vi, RJNDS 121 7 l2 49 10,123 (03726iowerFunds
. 1217

6.2 Other
Vii. MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES 15

. 15 100 - (00YIlI. .SI!U!L
.

— 8ZY._.__M2L_____iX FAaORING PAYABLES
. .

L LEASEPAYABLES(Net)
. - -bi Finanomi Lanse Payables ...._j
._.......: — ., —.102 Opaaıional Lease Payables

10.3 Other
. . .

. J33FINANCIAL LIABILITIES <2L
...:. . .JJL_.1!!i!_._______________ —.Jj__ÇflçJğe —_____ .

j_J2ytHedae
-—

—____XIl. PROVISIONS JİQL 3,850 4302 4,30212.1 General l.oan Loss Provision 3.110’
- 3.110 2,670 -‘ 2,67012.2 RestmcturingPtovisioıu

-123
— 254 299 . 299114 lnsumnçeTevhnicalPmvisions(NeI)

— —.
—______ - —.JPstian!_. 6

JJTXUABJJ4fl’__.
.133 CurrentTaxLiabihIy . .

- —.
.._

—. 4Ş
-- -.

-XIY. PAYAULES FOR ASSET HELD FOR RESALE AND
9flP1P9£!1!PN5 .__üt-:L -.14.1 Heldforkesale

,——,,.———:_2a4!4e 1_

—
JJğ) --

. -- ,_:.2Ç!L_ SHAREBO LDERSjÇITY_
. .£.İL ..,1ğ24,? ,.-2Ş? 9Ş .J3JJ Paid-incaphal

— 2Ç99 ,_2gçç
,....:JLaçA_____________

— JŞL....,,.i?9)_.._..,._.:16.2.1 Share Pramium
-

.

16.2.2 SlmroCm,eelbüon Proliis
-

.

fl.- .fl2L_J22)163.4 TajıpbIeAsseRcva(uationResenc
- ._: 1—-—.16,2.5 JbksseuReatiouResent ‘- -

J.Ç!L..Ç!L”2!!ÇYYM2PSÇ£!L,.........,
...—— - -

-16,2.7 Bonus Shares Obtainçd from Investmenls in Associates.
Subsidiaıies and kim Ventures

.
.

,,LÇLL
- -. ,.. .

.._: .: ——16.2.9 Value OifTerences of Astar HeId for Resale and Discontinued
-—.- —

- -JA3±°
.

-— L i._ -__L_J.ğ. .LL£!!L._.,. — — .1 1 — ‘ri._:[_. 3216 111_
..

Ş’
- ,.216.3.2 Status Resees 295

. 295 295 . 295J,13 dioary en-es
.—,

. ., -16,3,4 Other Prorıt Reserves
. - .

64 — Incnmeor(Loss) (‘1 3(6)
— (21 316) (24682) ——16.4.1 Prior Years’ Incornü (Loss) [ (23.682)) •. (24682 (33.369) (33,469)16 4.2 Cutront Yeni Incomw !Loss) 3.366

- 3.366 5.787! -. 8.787
J TOTAL LIABILITIES

. 265.351: 82.23U 347.682’ 240,797’ - 8l.60 322,405

The accompanying noles are an inıegral pan of tlıesc linancial statements.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

UNCONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016

Il. OFF-BALANCE SHEET

1 Current Yeir PHor Period
OFF-fl,%LANCE SIIEET COMMITMENTS Note 31 Marc!, 20(6 3! Dacember2ols

t ge e ılo n
FIve-IHJ TL•••FÇ Total TL FÇ —. Tota!A ÖV BLNsııarcÖIsıınıENcı+ıı÷ııl? — — I04,135 17 J82 iıyj lTı,926 — zilısı1

, GUARANTEESANDWARRANTIES
--

. 94j 67,931 I3988i 39665 j1,330,, JfiTıTotı - - — --
-- __43Oü665 a9_ü))

-

— . . . - - -12. CrntenGiveflrorForTndenuana 1 fl75 fl . 7!4 191ffl’OUnftiiihiü
— gİ,ırsr54r6rwöı i3j736):.:zcr ::zrz zrzz: :zzti EEiZiYU 3.Ç!P!D£L... , -.—.—...——..-—-_——: —-—---1---——-: ——— .— ..— —D..

—1.3. Lenera 6TCredıt
- 24,873 24,873 22,301 22,30!91I D6rnaıjEciürtCCiedC 1ğ13112. UdertcncnoTtridıt
- -

—_-———--,-----——--_-—-—---_.fl” Eadooşmems
—____________ —rr— Eodonenıen othe CfliofTüy :zzz :EzZTfl. Nhei£Iıdortcmcnt,

- . -
-1 6. Secırtıc, Isı Piipuannıca

- . .t .7_ FEiijuiirneeı
—..

.T!. öılIWuarantees
. .937 Öıhii C1laıenW

. . . -1C TOMMİTMrWVS
____ I iü3o9 ‘ğjİ fl1Ü6ir TjŞtTünjr ‘3’ “f1)SÖ! “1137TTT ‘ıet ichaıe anddZoıiiiiIiiiVenu______________

- - -
!,4fl 8,431 f?911T (.2. ş7urdhae aTSalca Commıımcnli

- - - tOM -Tfl 1
-YI1 Commimısnu for Lo.n Lımıı,

- . . . . -TIT Secunne, lasuc Broİcn e CWmminnen
. . .TI ti1iitflFAilı-ve ii Rımmems —

. .n._ C2mnnpfşClgtı_ —
--

.r_ tnaüTudtrnTboeilmrnipprtCommıtmn
— fl__...r 21 Ş2. (T töiiuı{iunern, fWCtdıı tardt,mlis

-
.23 rr Şromooitommhmenıs faşTrear5iiEiiTiiiTün Scmces

. .nır 1teceT’j1iIcu rfOfl(sbr ECommiTmmts ol ar eli 1iSbunnes

. - -!.ET2. İŞ18bTe, ForIon SikümmınnenüiF’MüketaUITccunoes

.
.ırır erTrrevoci!VCmmıtmenı,
.ır

——
—•:

12.1 Rn,cüleCom,mfle,fls ta IanLimhs 1 -

flTtUdıerRsvocabıeCommIımcnes - —r——r—:’ -—-----r- -118 DEAIV4TIVE fl’.ANCIAL INflUMEVTS j3fl T11I ‘113oo j r2363 Z3J TJ!Il —

.

.-Tü TrmmeuonilSFFIWVili,e Hedgt
.T, fl 1ŞiISaCuOII, TÖFti1IPIOWJ4gÇ___________________________ . - .11T 1Şiııaciiöiil6roiTct Invashnenı Hj4

- .•3•r__ __•J5 •_ —T2T
‘-“— . 97ğ3 1Sııır WnvarWFortiCumn TnnsactıoniflW

. . .
.nr T6Fat5h,,Ey

3.22 5w, Trra.aıons lv to Forüiruny ad Inısrest Rate, t______ —9Y1 ffl601rWr]2]12T1 Ç313r-nır FO1Ç_CWTtn Sww.Buv7nr Tom,a Cinc rJi1r E_ ri rıtıt_ _L ‘4sjJp3.2.2.3
—_________ ,,r —-3rr Tı stb’ıap-Sell__ —___________________

,.- ..tni TbreiCurrcjyIiüintnıcanıI!ccunuesOpnons
.flW7orrnttnöpıfEnı.huy

. ——•flT_ otntpiona.SeII
—-______ - J. ,--....-——:ÜD ihıcrest Küt gpnonsSy__

. .
-)2,.3.4 lnes;eÇpçonı-Ş__

.___: ._.J ._._i -————tİDİ ‘Çcıi{e, tioıüWuy
.

. .
-3136 STiıe, om.Sdl 1 . .İr T6€% unen uımts

. . -TTW gntvTu

-2T lntcrcsfRireYısmrts
- - -12.3. r lEteıest kate Pütures-bu

. .nı. Piimreı.e

. . . -İ2 öflir
-r tuı’ÖbvxNbpıJbsktctıVrbLv+v+vıy 93 417 ssıil — l8l84 Z )7868 9l 809 189,677tv. ııtsrsıwıprıcustör 4111 4(0 1)33 - 0M.i CuuomsTÇund ar4 Potd1ıo a!anccs

. . -fl.
:._, —.4Ct!k£9 ..___.L._.JI9İT tommcrejaWoıctcrcd!brc1Iccoon __rl4.5

._.
._.. __i ..İT itseorPNür

- -
- . -P

- ,,. .
-31, Custodıans

— — .v : i’ttbSk!CtıVıb 9JjOO 4,16ğ — 158,772 )6191i 3) 418 — 146,331
T’2’Güiiid’Möter —

_ - 1!TŞ “60 Y3’:’213fl Commo
- 4j$ it,10 -I ‘bI*flWiy —

f ._ .

wrnırnnov3ıı
‘ ‘‘ı<6jöıherNcdadhemf

- :_ı::TT 1 rldeiTıcms-beposıton’
- -. -1 -:vr T’itCEnED INDEI LNDEN 1 (tl R \ (tES Nl) W RIflNlILS 0 1’37 t 4’SO 42,391 — 4,391mTA’L’ornJ;EANttnıEt’cosıMİ-rMEN’ı-s(£+İi) T

J0i’sıi ;_Q3999
306 ğj

The aceompanying notes are an inwgral part oI’these tinancial statemenis,

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL” unless othenvise stated,)

Marketable Secu,iıies 42374 42374 43772 43 0, 771
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
AT3İ MARCH 2016
(\moun1s are expressed in ıhousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss othcnisc stated.)

Il!. INCOME STATEMENT (STATEM£NT OF PROHT AND LOSS)

Currentyearl Pdor PedodINCONIE AND EXPENSE ITENIS Note
(Seclion 1 .Iaouaty - t .Ianuaıy -

Fic-IV) 3) \lrch 21)16. 3! Nlarch 2015
.1, L!NT!PT NCONİE

8,630L 3761 Inıertst on Loans
. 7,626 .979

.1:2
Ü

ttşşj om ytRequire
-

-
. 4...1:3 lnterestRceivedfromBanks 36j

t — JI Marke şqjn
. ... ‘211 .5 Interest Received from Marketablc Securities Poflfolio 505 696ISI Tradın6FınancıaIAsse —

- İ____ —

U_. Avaılablc’for-saleFınancialMseıs ____j,___ 50L__1.5.4 Heid-to-matunev [nvcs*ments
1

- -1 .6 Financial Lease Inçome
-

1.7 Other Inıcrest Income
- -.!L_ JgSENNŞJ)_._,_ LI 1,134 206

,ıL_jnjeP9fiJkL
— -2.2 Inlerest on Fonds Sorrowed (-) 683 6621 lmtEanseqMonçyN Işi!ops (-) 188 212.4 lotaest on Secıuilies Issuad (-) -2.5 OtherIntrestExeıtsesj-l — -——————__________________ (12)

JJL..._. 7,49j ._.JJ2PIV. NET FEES AND COMMISSİONS INCOMEİEXPENSE 261 164.1 Fees and Conmissions Received 304 324.1.1 Non-casl, Loans 213 64.1.2 Glher <tl) 9! 164.2 Fe and Commissions Paul 1-) 43 6

-4.2.2 .P!hE.bL..._........._ (12) __J2E INCO IL fl1._
.Yk..._ .JMW.N !.NÇPMüPŞŞiF..çU_ ..._±4L..AL......,.. TradinGainsftLosses)on e P!’

..
........AL_.

6.3 ForegnEzchanjçGains/(Losses) L116 303VB. OTIIEROPERATING INCONIL (5) 1 117 2VIIL ı9ı4ggUN.9 1NCOMEA!I+W+V+VI+VII) 5,0271 jPflŞi9N.F.Q!0 NLOSSLS AND OTHER RECEIVADLES (-) <6)
...Pİ!.W1L9!B,A11NC .X b)...,..,._.______________________________ 3,Ş37

1L_.. ...N!Ü!PA ŞŞL!,!!i±Çfti...__ —______
—______ 44MI. EXCESS AMOUNT RECORDED AS INCOME An’ER MERGER

- -Mil. INCOMb(LOSS) FROM INVESTMEN’rs İN SUHSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BASED
—.ONEQUIÜ’ MEpqp__•___________________________

- —-_____XIV. INCOME4LOSS)9N NET NIONETARY POSITİON
.2XV. JÇ9E!LOjŞFORETAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATj9ŞjXit...+XlV) (8) 4,2647W!. TÜ PROVISION FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS(-) (9)

16.1 Cuwenl Tax Provision (481) -J,,,,,_ğfçed
———--—-—-.. .

.,..,.. .._....._....JI.’.7)ÜLLL._ .fl3J.Ç9ML(OSŞJ EROM CONTINUING 0rERATIONsJXV-y9 J]9‘XVIIL INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATİONS
— —, - - -18.1 Ineome han Non-Curcot_Asset, I{eld for Resale

- -18.2 Saie Income 60m Associates, Subsidiaries and kim Venlures
- -J!L

____ ______

NIX. EXrENSES FRONI DISCO7ÇUNUED OPERATIONS (-L
-

,, .

—
_.. .... - --9.2 Sale Losses ham Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Venlures

OthcrExpenses

fronflisconsinuedOperndons
İNÇÇMEI(LO SS)UEFOR ETAX FROM P!5Ç0 NT!NUE0 OPERATİON (Y!L!:WL <8)

.. -

bi
. .... .J_._ı..J-n

— -
-— — ...- ._:

—_21.2 [P9ncdtapmviaion
—

— -.ülI ‘,ET flCOIE (LOSS) FRO%1 DISCO’,TtNt.ED orERVtlOs ç’t kM)
1

—NET.IN COME/(LOSS) (NYUİNN.W (fl) 6 397Earnrngs/t Lassl per ehare 11,1)132 0.0054

‘Fiıc accompanying notes are an integral part oI’these flnancial statements.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED İN EQUİTY AT
31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

IV. STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSE İTEMS ACCOUNTED İN EQUITY

Currcnt Year Prior Pedod

3! March 2016 31 Mareh 2015

Ç9•E N lE !.s .cçp’ T İr
‘ -....-.... —

ADDİTİONS TO ThE MARKETAİ3LE SECURİTIES VALUATİON RESERVE FROM THE AVAİLABLE
L1,2R SALE FINANC!AL

Il. REVALUATİON DIFFERENCES OF TANGII3LE ASSETS
İli. REVALUATİON DİFFERENCES OF INTANGİHLE ASSETS -

IV. FOREİGN EXCIIANGE TRANSLATİON DİFFERENCES FOR FOREİGN CURRENCY TRANSACTİONS - -

İNCOME/LOSS ON CASII FLOW İIEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCİAL ASSETS (Effecthe Pan of Fair
Y.• Y.aJ.C

PROFİT/LOSS ERONİ FOREİGN İNVESTNİENT IIEDGE DERIVATİVE FİNANCİAL ASSETS (Effective
‘k_ Prtof Fair Valuc Changş) -

Vİİ. EFFECTS OF CIİANGES İN ACCOUNTİNG POLİCY AND ERRORS -

!.!.!2 9BIiL!.NÇ9N.E 4,N QENP SE W.!.5 Ç9 ‘.N !IY.ÇÇQP1NÇ..1QI4
IL DEFERRED TAX ON VALUATİON DİFFERENCES . 10 22

‘C .JNLIJ.NO LE 9ŞŞÇÇO UNIÇ.P..Pİ!ÇTLIJN 9flX.iW::t!a (87)
Xi. çpME/LO ŞŞ, -_______ 1397
1i.l Fair ValueofMarketable Securitles ÇTran

1 I.2!Pon ° 19’ IdE9 erivay9 i!1QP£il - -

1 9ff !ys!m U£E.P 5.! £.°“
114 .

Xİİ.kTALINCOME/LOSSRELAFEDTOTIİECURRENTPFRİOD(X+Xİ) 3327 1310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL”) unless othenvisc stated.)

Vi. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

t

it

1.1

1.1.1
1.1.2
1.1.3
1.1.4
1.1.5
1.1.6
1.1.7
1.1.8
1.1,9

1.2

1.2.1
.2.2
.2.3
.2.4
.2.5
.2.6
.2.7
2.8
.2.9

12.10

1.

CASII FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATİONS

Opentling Prnrıt Before Clıanges in Opentling Asset, and Liabilitie,

Interest Received
Inlerest Paid
Dividend Received
Feet and Cnmmissinns Reee,ved
Otiter Incone
Colleetions fiom Previnusly Written-oIT Loan5 and Other Receivables
Paymenıs in Personnel and Seıwiee Supplien
Tates Paid
Other

hanga in OrstIng 4sse!s 8!!4 !-i!W

Net (InereaseyDecrease in Trading Secuniie,
Net (Increasöflccrease in Fair Van Tl o Ptorıutoss Financial M,ets
Net (Inereasöt.crease in Due from Banks
Net (InaeascVDecrease in Loan,
Net (Inereas.yflecrease in Other Ass.ts
Net Increase/(Oecrease) in Bank Deposita
Net lncreasei(Decrcnse) in Odwr Dq,nsiu
Na Increase’(Dtcreasej in Fund, Borrowcd
Net lncrease/(Decrca,e in Pavab!es
Net lrsatD.aease) in Other Liabilities

Net Cuh Provided (tam Bınkine Openelons

Note (Secilon
Five-VI)

(2)

(2)

(2)

Current Vear

31 Mareh 2016

4,712

8,790
(668)

310
1,446

(1,569)

(3,592)

(25,867)

(212)
(2,068)

(41,871)
3,261

17,548

(3.525)

121.155)

Prlor PerIrni

31 Match 2015

1,997

. - .

(189)

36
(252)

(1,289)

(1,138)

(52,063)

(2,422)
(57,619)

2,637

8,442

(3.101)

(50,06)

D. CASII FLOWS FROM INVESTING AaıvıTıEs

IL NetCubPmvidedfromlnvsfiagAetMdo (2gQI -___________

2.! CashPaidforAcquiaidonoflnvesonents,MsociatesandsuSidiaries ——__________

22 Cash Obbined ftom Disposal of lnvestmenb. Associates and Subaidiades . -

2,3 Purehases of Ptoıty and Eguipmem -—________________ (236
. Q21.

2.4 Disposais of Propeny and Equipman(
2,5 CaMı Paid for Pwvhase of lnvestncnis Avnilable.for-Sale — (9.925)
2.6 CaMı Obwiııcd fon, Salt af Investmems Mallable-for.Sak 1000 1,193
2.7 CaMı Paid for Pwvhase of lnvestmenl Samilios
2.8 CaMı ObtaiIWd fiom Sa). of lnyewnem Setwjtje,
2.9 Other

C CASH FLOWS PROM FINANCING ACfIVITIES

ili. Net CaMı Pn,lded from Flaaadng Acth1iI - .:

3.1 CaMı Ol,tained fon, Fonda Danowed aral Sevuriüe, Issued________________
32 CashUsdforRepaymmıtofFundsBouowedm,dsacınitierlssued

-—---.-. -

3.3 Issuad Capita) lmuwnasu . 175,000
3.4 DividendaPaid

±L —
1!!fo,1nm,1.fl5ö —— — — — (30)

3.6 Od,a -

IV. EctofCImngeInPorelgnEzçgeRaftonCadıandÇnsh q1!!!!_._,.. ..J1L....,_ .

..Y, NetInerçDtcruse)InCashandüshEquivaIentsi+ll+HI+iVj .. , JM4Z) —-

YI. Cashand Cash,aIenesattheReginningoflhcPeriod (D — 4N.

çWÇqhç of the Pedod ÇV+V (1) -- - z:z.!

The accompanving notes are an integral part of these linancial statcmcnts.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expresscd in thousands of Turldsh Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

SECTION THREE

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLİCIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

a. The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the “Regulation on
the Principles and Procedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Safeguarding
of Documents”:

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on
Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” related with Banking Act
nıımbered 54!! published in the Offıcia! Gazeue no.26333 dated 1 November 2006 and in accordance
with the regulations. communiquĞs. inıerpretations and legislations related ta accounting aM ünancial
reporting principles published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Ageney (“BRSA”). and in
case where a speciFıc regulation is not made by BRSA. “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS”) and
“Turkish Financial Reporting Standards” (“TFRS”) and related appendices and interpretations put into
effect by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“P0K’). The format and
content of the publiciy announced unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these statements
have been prepared in aceordance wiih the Communiqud on Publiciy Announced Financial Statements.
Explanations and Notes la These Financial Statemenls” and “Communiqu On Disclosures Abant Risk
Management To Be Announced To Public By Banks”and amendments to this Communiqu. The Bank
maintains its books in Turkish Lira in accordance with the Banking Act, Turkish Commercial Code and
Turkish Tax Legis!atian.

The unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in TL, under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets and Iiabiiities carried al fair value.

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with TAS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates by the Bank management ta exercise itsjudgment on the assets and
Iiabilities of the balance sheet and contingent issues as of the balance sheet date. These estimates, which
include the fair value calculations of financial instruments and impairments of financial assets are being
reviewed regulariy and, when necessarv. suitable corrections are made and the effects of these
corrections are reflected to the income statement. Assumptians and estimates that are used in the
preparation of the accompanying fınancial statements are explained in the fo!!owing related disclosııres.
The amendments of TAS and TFRS, effectiveness date is 1 January 2016, have no material impact on
the Bank’s accoıınting policies, financial position and performance. The amendrnents of TAS and
TFRS. except TFRS 9 Financiah lnstruments (201! Version) wili have na impact on the accounting
policies, tinancial condition and performance of the Bank. The Bank assesses the impact ofTFRS 9
Financial lnstruments standard.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBL[CLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS OIUGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expresscd in thousands ofTurkish Lira (“TL) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLIC[ES (Continued)

k The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation of these linancial
statements and valuation principles:

The aceounting policies and vaiuation principles applied in the preparation of unconsolidated financial
statements, are determined and apphied in accordance with regulations, commııniquü, explanations and
circulars on accounting and fınancial reporting principles published by the BRSA, and in case where
there is no special regulation made by the BRSA, in accordance with principles in the context of TAS
and TFRS, and are consistent with the accounting policies applied in the annual financial statements of
the year ended 31 December 201 5.The aforementioned accounting poiicies and valuation principles are
explained in relared notes behow.

e. Explanation for eonvenience translation into English:

The differences between accounting principles, as described in these preceding paragraphs and
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which unconsolidated financial statements are
to be distributed and international Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantifıed in
these unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly. these unconsolidated financial statements are
not intended to present the fınancial position, results of operations and changes in financiah position and
cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generaliy accepted in such countries and IFRS.

İL EXPLANATIONS ON STRATEGY OF USING FINANCIAL İNSTRUMENTS AND FOREIGN
CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The general strategy of the Bank of using financial instruments is to sııslain an optimal balance between
the yield of the instruments and their risks. The most important funding source of the Bank is internal
funding, in addition external funding inciuding funding from repo transactions and borrowing from
foreign financial institutions k utilised. Funds obtained from internal and externai sources are invested
in high yieid and quality financial assets and cureney, interest rate and Iiquiditv risks are being kept
within the iimits foiiowing the asset-iiabihity management strategy. The currency, interest and iiquidity
risks of on-balance siıeet and off-balance sheet assets and liabiiities are managed in aceordance with the
risk limiis accepted by the Bank and the related legal limits. Derivative instnımenis are mainiy utilised
for hiquidity needs and for mitigating curency and interest rate risks. The position of the Bank asa
result of foreign currencv activities being heid at minimum leveis and the exposed curency risk is
followed within the determined leveis by the Board of Directors by considering the limits giyen by the
Banking Law.

Foreign currency denominated monetaiy assets and hiabiiities are transiated with the Banks foreign
cunencv bid rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from such valuations are
recognised in the income statement under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBL[CLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED F[NANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ MARCH 2016
(Amounts are exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (‘TL”) unlcss odıenvise stated.)

ELANATIONS ON ACCOUNTLNG POLICIES (Continued)

111. EXPLANATIONS ON FORWARD TRANSACTIONS, OPTİONS AND DERİVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS

The Bank does not have any embedded derivative instruments.

Derivative inslruments are ciassifled either as “Hedging Derivative Financial lnstruments” or “Trading
Derivative Financial lnstruments” in accordance with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“TAS 39”)”. Certain derivative transactions, even though
they provide effective economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management position, do not quaiit’ for
hedge accounting under the specific rules in TAS 39 and are therefore treated as “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”.

Derivative instruments are measured at fair vaiue on initial recognition and subsequently remeasured at
their fair values. lfthe fair value ofderivative financial instruments is positive, it is disclosed under the
main account “Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss” in “Trading derivative fınancial
instruments” and ifthe fair value difference is negative, it is disclosed under Trading derivative
flnancial liabilities”. The fair values of the derivative Fınancial instruments are calculated by using
quoted market prices or by using discounted cash flow models. Liabilities and receivables arising from
the derivative instruments are followed in the off-balance sheet accounts from their contractual values.

IV. EXPLANATIONS ON INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis. The Bank
ceases accming interest income on non-performing ioans and, any interest income accruals from such
loans are being reversed and no income is accounted until the collection is made. Oniy cash collections
regarding non-performing loans are recorded as interest income.

V. EXPLANATİONS ON FEE AND COMMISSİON INCOME AND EXPENSE

Ali fees and commissions incomeİexpenses are recognised on an accrual basis. except for certain
commission income and fees from various banking services which are recorded as income at the time of
collection.

Fees and commissions expenses paid to the other institutions regarding financial liabilities are
considered ü component of interest expense of the related funding and are recognised as tmnsaction
costs and recorded as expense in the statement of protit and ioss.

Contract-based fees or fees received in retum for services such as the purehase and sale of assets on
behalfofa third or legal person are recognised as income at the time ofcoilection.
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLWATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOUDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounıs are cxprcssed n Ihousands ofTurkish Lira (“TUŞ) unless oıhcrnisc stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTUG POLİCIES (Continued)

Vi. EXPLANATIONS ON FENANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank ciassifles and accounts its financial assets as “Fair vaiue through profit ot loss”. “Available
for-sale”, “Loans and receivables” or “HeId-to-maturity”. Sales and purchases of the financial assets
mentioned above are recognised at the “settlement dates”. The appropriate classiflcation of financial
assets of the Bank is determined at the time of purchase by the Bank management, taking into
considemtion the purpose of holding the investment.

a. Financial assets at fair valuc through profıt or Ioss:

Financial assets are ciassifled either as Financial assets at fair value through profit ot Ioss” ot
“Trading financial assets”.

Trading financial assets are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctualions in the
price or dealer’s margin, ot are the financial assets inciuded in a portfolio in which a pailem of
short-term profit making exists independent from the acquisition purpose.

Sales and purchases of trading financial assets are recognised at the “settlement dates”. Trading
financial assets are initialiy recognised at fair value plus transactions costs and are subsequentiy
re-measured at their fair value. Ali gains and losses arising from these evaluations are recognised in
the income statement. interest eamed while holding financial assets is reported as interest income
and dividends received are included separately in dividend income.

Derivative fınancial instruments are treated as trading fınancial assets uniess they are not
designated as hedge instruments. The principles regarding the accounting of derivative ünancial
iııstruments are explained in detail in Note IV of this section.

b. Available-for-saie financial assets:

Available-for-sale financial assets are defined as financial assets other than the ones ciassifled as
“Loans and receivables”. “Held-to-maturity assets” or “Financial asset at fair value through profit
or ioss”.

Govemment bonds inciuded in the available-for-sale financial assets are subsequentiy re-measured
al fair valııe. UnreaIised gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair vaiue of tinancial assets
classilied as available-for-sale are recognised in the slıareholders’ equitv as “Marketable Securities
Valuation Reserve”. until there is a permanent deciine in the fair vaiues of such assets or they are
disposed of. When these financial assets are disposed of ot impaired, the related fair vaiue
differences accumııiated in the shnreholders’ equily are transferred to the income stalement.

Available-for-sale equity securities that have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair vaiues can be reiiably measured are carried at fair value. Available-for-sale equiiy securities
tlıat do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reiiably
measııred are carried at cost, Iess provision For impairment.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ MARCII 2016
(Amoun(s are exprcsscd in thousands of TurLish Lira ÇTL’) unkss otlıerwise staçed.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conhinued)

e. Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets which are created by providing money, services or goods
to a debtor. Loans and receivables originated by the Bank are carried initially at cost and
subsequently recognised at the amortised cost value calculated using the effective interest method.
The expenses incurred for the assets received as collateral are not considered as transaction cosis
and are recognised in the expense accounts.

The Bank provides general and specific provisions based on the assessments and estimates of the
management. by considering the “Communiqud Related to Principles and Procedures on
Determining the Qualiflcations of Banks’ Loans and Other Receivables and the Provision for Tlıese
Loans and Other Receivables” published in the Offlcial Gazene No. 26333 dated 1 November
2006. Apart from specific provisions, the Bank has general ban Ioss provision within the seope of
the stated regulations.

yIl. EXPLANATIONS ON IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 15 objective evidence tlıat a financial asset or
a group of financial assets 15 impaired. Where the estimated recoverable amount of the fınancial asset,
being the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted based on the effective interest
method. or the fair value if one exists is lower İhan its canying value. then it is concluded that the asset
under consideration is impaired. A provision is made for the diminution in value of the impaired
financial asset and it 15 charged against the income for the year.

VII1.EXPLANATIONS ON OFFSETTING FİNANCL4L ASSETS

Financial assets and Iiabilities are offset and the net amount is reponed in the balance sheet when the
Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
collecüpay rebated fınancial assets and liabilities on a net basis, Dr to realise the asset and settle the
hiability simultaneously.

IX. EXPLANATIONS ON SALES AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND SECURITIES
LENDİNG TRANSACTIONS

Securitles subject to repurchase agreernents (Repo”) are ciassiiled as “Financial assets at fair value
through proflı or loss”, “Available-for-sale” and “Held-to-rnaturity” aceording to the investment
purposes ofthe Bank and measured aceording to the portfolio to which thev belong. Funds obmined
from repurchase agreements are accoıınted under “Funds Provided under Repıırchase Agreements” in
hiabihitles and the differenee between the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the hife ofrepurchase
agreements using the effective interest method.

Funds giyen against secLırities purchased ıınder agreements (Reverse repo”) to reseil are accounted
under “Receivables frorn Reverse Repurchase Agreements” on the balance sheet. The difference
between the purchase and determined reseli price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements
using the “effective interest method”.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLİCIES (Continued)

X. EXPLANATIONS ON ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND FIXED ASSETS FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND LİABJLITIES RELATED WITH TRESE ASSETS

According to TFRS 5. non-current asset classifıed as heid for sale (or group ofassets to be disposed) is
measured by the lowest of book value ör sales costs discounted fair value. An asset to be heid for sale
asset (or group of assets to be disposed) it is necessaıy that, the related asset has to be commonly seen
on the sales ofthese kind of sales assets, it could be easily immediateiy sold in the frame of usual
conditions and it has to have high sales probability. For the high sales probability, there has to be a plan
regarding the sales of asset made by the appropriate management level and by the determination of
buyers there has it be an active program started regarding to completion of the plan.

Assets heid-for-resale consist of tangible assets that vere acquired due to non-performing receivables,
and are accounted in the financial statements in accordance with the “Communiqu Regarding the
Principles and Procedures for the Disposals of Immovable and Commodities Acquired due to
Receivables and for Trading of Precious Metal” published in the Official Gazette dated

1 November 2006, No. 26333.

A discontinued operation is a part classifıed as discarded or held for sales by the bank. Results regarding
to discontinue operations are presented individually in income statement.

The Bank has no discontinued operations.

M. EXPLANATİONS ON GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly allributable costs ofsetting
the asset to work for its intended use are ineluded in the initial measurement. Subsequently, intangible
assets are carried at historical costs after the deduction of accumulated amodization and the provision
for value decreases, ifany.

Intangibles are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to five years using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the asset is detennined by assessing the expected useful Efe of the asset.
technical. technological and other kinds of obsolescence and alI required maintenance expenses
necessary to utihise the economic benefıt of the assets.

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates, amonization period, amortization
ınethod. or residual value that wilI have signiticant impact on the current or the fohlowing periods.

Computer software development expenses that add to the economic benefıt and extend the useful life of
the software are capitahised. These expenses are amortised over the remaining useful Ilk of the related
intangible asset using “the straight-line method”.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTIISG POLICİES (Continued)

XİI. EXPLANATIONS ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment k measured nt its cost when initiaily recognised and any directly aftributable
costs of setting the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, property and equipment are carried at cost Iess accumulated depreciation and provision
for value decrease, ifany. Depreciation k calculated over the cost of propeıty and equipment using the
straight-Iine method. The depreciation rates are stated below:

Offlce machine, furniture, Ieasehold improvements and vehicles 3-10 years

The depreciation eharge for items remaining in properW and equipment for less than an accounting
period at the balance sheet daLe k calculated in proportion to the period the hem remained in property
and equipment.

Where the carıying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated “recoverable amount”, it is wriften
down immediateiy to its “recoverable amount” and the provision for the diminution in value is charged
to the income statement.

Property and equipment are not subject to valuation such that fair value is presented in the tinancial
statements.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book
value of the property and equipment from its sales revenue.

Expenditures for the reguiar repair and maintenance of property and equipment are recognised as
expense. The capital expendiıures made in order to increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to
increase its future benetits are capitalised on the cost of the tangible asset. The capital expenditures
include the cost components which are used either to increase the useful life or the capacitv of the asset.
or the quality of the product or to decrense the costs.

There k no pledge. mongage or commitment on the Bank’s propertv and equipments.

The Bank expects no ehange with respect to accounting estimates that have signifıcant impact on the
current period or may have signiflcant impact on the following periods.
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EXPLANATİONS ON ACCOUNTİNG POLICİES (Continued)

XIII.EXPLANATİONS ON LEASING TRANSACTİONS

Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the “Iower
of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the amount of cash consideration giyen for
the leased asset”. Leased assets are inci uded in the property and eqııipment and depreciation is charged
on a straight-line bask over the useful life of these assets. If there k anv diminution in value of the
leased asset a “Provision for value decrease” is recognised. Liabilities adsing from the leasing
transactions are included in “Financial Lease Payables” on the balance sheet. Interest and foreign
exchange expenses regarding lease transactions are charged to the income statement.

Opcraıing Lease

Leases, in which the majority of risk and return ofproperty be)ongs to lessor, are classifıed as
operational lease. Payments that are made under operational leases, are accounted in income statements
on a straight line basis during the lease period.

XİV. EXPLANATIONS ON PROVİSİONS AND CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS

Provisions and contingent liabilities except for the fınancial instruments within the scope of the TAS 39
or the provisions recognised in accordance with the TAS 12 and TAS 19 are accounted in accordance
with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Provisions, Contingenı Liabilities and Conhingent Assets”
(“TAS 37”).

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation asa result of past
events. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefıts will be required to
settle the obligation. anda reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The provision
for contingent Iiabilicies arising from past events shouid be recognised in the same period of occurrence
in accordance wiıh the “Matching principle”. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated
and there is no possibility ofan outflow of resources from the Bank, it is considered that a “Contingent”
liability exists and it is disclosed in the related notes to the fınancial statements.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTLNG POLICİES (Continued)

XV. EXPLANATIONS ON OBLIGATİONS RELATED TO ENWLOYEE RIGIITS

Obligations related to employee termination and vacation riglıts are accounted for in accordance with
“Turkish Accounting Standard for Employee Rights” (“TAS 19”) and are classified under “Reserve for
Employee Rights” accoıınt in the balance sheet. Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Bank is required to
pay a specific amount to the employees who have retired or whose employment is terminated other İhan
the reasons specifıed in the Turkish Labour Law. The reserve for employment termination beneflts
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of the Bank
arising from this Iiability.

According to TAS 19 that is revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
with the Communique published in Offlcial Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in the
calculation of the employment termination benefit Iiabilities of the Bank. the recognition option of the
actuarial gains and losses derived from the ehanges in actuarial assumptions or the difi’erences between
actuarial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The earlier application of the revision is
permitted in the section of the transition and effective date of the standard and tlıerefore the Bank has
recognised the netuarial gains and losses that occur in related reporting periods in the “Statement of
Income and Expense Items Accounted in Equity” and represented in the Prior Periods’ lncome/ (Loss)
hem in the Shareholders Equity section.

XVİ. EXPLANATIONS ON TAXATION

a. Current Tax:

Many clauses of Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 (“Tax Law”) which are valid starting from
1 January 2006, were taken into effect after being published in the Offlcial Gazette dated
21 September 2006 No. 26205. According to the Tax Law, the corporate tax rate in Turkey is
payable at the rate of 20% since 1 Januaıy 2006. The corporate tax rate is calculated on the totaL
income of the Bank after adjusting for certain disaliowable expenses. exempt income (such as
capital gains derived from the sale of equity investments) and other allowances. No further tax 15
payable unless the protit is distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations. which have a place ofbusiness in Turkey or to
resident corporations are not subject to withholding ta Othenyise. dividends paid are subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not considered
as profit distribution and thus does not incur withholding tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly ata rate of 20% on their corporate
income. Advance tax is deciared by the l4th and paid by the l7th day of the second montlı
following each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corpomtions which is for the current
period is credited against the annual corporation tax calculated on their anntıal corporate income in
the following year. Despite the offset. fthere is temporan’ prepaid tax remaining, this balance can
be refunded or used to offset any other financial liabilithes to the govemment.

A 75% portion of the capital gains derived from the sale of equity investments and immovable
properties heid for at least two years is tax exempt, ifsuch gains are added to paid-in capital or heid
in a speciai account under sharehoider’s equity for five years.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income for up to five years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous
periods.

in Turkey, there İS 110 procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Tax
retums are required to be fihled and delivered to the related tax office until the evening of the 25th
of the fourth month foilowing the balance sheet date. Tax retuns are open for five years from the
beginning of the year following the date of fihing during which period the tax authorities have the
right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based, and may
issue re-assessments based on their findings.

b. Deferred Tat

The Bank calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for ali temporaiy differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and Iiabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial
statements in aceordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” (“TAS 12”). in
the deferred tax calculation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as
of the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax Iiabilities are recognized for alI resulting temporary differences whereas deferred tax
assets resulting from temporaiy differenees are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit wihl be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utihized.

The calculated deferred tax asset and deferred tax Iiabihty are presented as net in these financial
statements.

c. Transfer Pricing:

The article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law describes the issue of transfer pricing under the title
oP’Disguised profit distribution” by way of transfer pricing. “The General Communiqu on
DisguisedProfit Distribution by Way of Transfer Pricing” explains the appiication related issues on
this matter.

Aecording to this Communiqu The Bank is required to fili out Transfer Pricing form, if the
taxpayers conduct transaetions ilke purchase and sale of goods or services with the related parties
as weil as the methodoiogy of the transfer pricing.

XVİI. EXPLANATIONS ON BORROWINGS

Trading and derivative financial Iiabihities are valued with their fair values and the other financial
Iiabilities are carried at “amortised cost” ıısing the efiective interest method.

The Bank ııtilises various hedging techniques to minimise the currency, interest rate and Iiquidity risks
of its financial hiabihities.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

XVIII. EXPLANATİONS ON ISSUANCE OF SUARES CERTİFICATES

Transaction costs regarding the issuance of share certificates are accounted under shareholders’ equity
after eliminating the tax effects. Dividend payrnents are determined by the General Assembiy of Bank.

The Bank has not issued any share certificates.

No dividend payments vere announced after the balance sheet date.

XIX. EXPLANATIONS ON AVALIZED DRAFTS AND ACCEPTANCES

Avalized drafts and acceptances shown as liabilities against assets are included in the “Off-balance
slıeet commitments”. The Bank has no avalized drafts and acceptances shown as liabilities against
assets.

XX. EXPLANATİONS ON GOVERNMENT GRANTS

As of 31 March 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Bank has no government grants.

XXI. EXPLANATIONS ON PROFIT RESERVES AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Retained eamings as per the statutoıy financial staternents other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement refered to below. Under the Turkish Commercial
Code (“TCC”) the legal reserves are composed of first and second reserves. The TCC requires first
reserves to be 5% of the profit until the total reserve k equal to 20% of issued and fuliy paid-in share
capital. Second reserves are required to be 10% of alI cash profit distribııtions that are in excess of 5%
of the issued and fully paid-in share capital. However holding companies are eNempt from this
application. Aceording to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal resenes can only be used lo compensate
accumulated losses and cannot be used for other purposes unless they exceed 50% of paid-in capital.

XXIİ. EXPLANATİONS ON EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share are calculated by dividing net profit for the year to the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period concemed. Eamings per share disclosed in the income stateınent
are calculated by dividing net profit for the year to the weighted avenge capital outstanding during the
period concerned.

in Turkey. companies can increase tbeir share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares
(“bonus shares”) to existing shareholders from reıained eamings. For the purpose of earnings per share
compulalions, the weighted average nıımber of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in
respect to bonus shares issued withoııt a corresponding change in resources by giving thern a retroactive
effect for the year in which they vere issııed and for each earlier period. Where the number of
oııtstanding shares increase due to distribution of bonus shares after the balance sheet dale but before
the release of the financial statements, earnings per share computations are performed based on the
revised average number of shares.
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EXPLANATİONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

XXIIİ. EXPLANATİONS ON RELATED PARTIES

Parties defined in Article 49 of the Banking Law No.541 1, Bank’s senior management and Board
Members are deemed as related parties. Transactions regarding related parties are presented in Note
Vi of Section Five.

XXW. EXPLANATIONS ON CASII AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the preparation of statement of cash flows, “Cash” includes cash, effectives, and
cash in transit, purchased eheques and demand deposits ineluding balances with the Central Bank; and
“Cash equivalents” include interbank money market placements and time deposits at banks with original
maturity periods of Iess than tlıree months.

XXV. EXPLANATİONS ON SEGMENT REPORTING

lnformation on operational fıelds which are determined in accordance with the Bank’s organisational
and internal reporting structure and the requirements of”Turkish Accoıınting Standards on Segment
Reporting” (“TAS 8”) is disclosed in Section Four.

XXVI. RECLASSIFICATIONS

None.
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SECTION FOUR

INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT

1. EXPLANATİONS ON SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ITEMS

Equity Capital amount and capital adequacy standard ratio is calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” and “Regulation on Equities of Banks”.

The current period equity amount of the Bank is TL 236,468 while its capital adequacy standard ratio is 71.79%
as of March 3 1, 201 6. Calculations of December 3 1, 2015 have been made in the framework of repealed
reguiations and equity amount is TL 232,480 while the capital adequacy standard ratio is 91.75%. The capital
adequacy ratio of the Bank is far beyond the minimum rate determined by the related legislation.

Amoonıs
Subject to

Pre-Basel ili
AmounLsi treatment

(Before the
1/1/2014) *

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-up Capital 255.000

Share issue premiums

Retained eamings 323
Accumulated other comprehensive income and other disclosed resenes which defined in the Turkish Accounting
Standards

Proflt

-______

Net proflt ol’ the period 3.366

Protit of the previous years

Shares acquired free of charge from subsidiaries. aflillates and ointlv controlled pannerships and cannot be
recognised within profıt for the period
Common Equity Tier t capital before regulatory adjustments 25S,690

Common Equity Tier t capital: regulatory adjustments

Vnjdcntial valuation adjustments
-

The sum of the net loss for the current period and the previous years whieh could not be absorbed hy the retained
eamings_and_losses_recognised_in_eguity_in_aceordance with TAS 24.720
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSİTION AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

lmprovement costs Ibr operating leasing 24
Ooodwill (net of related tax liabilitv)
Ollıer intangibles other than moneage-senicing rights (net of related la’< Iiability) 353 SSj
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporaıw differences (net of relate
a Iiability)
Cash-Ilow hedge reserve

-

Shortfall of provisions to expecıed losses
Securitisation gam on sale
Gains and losses duc to changes in own eredit risk on fair valued Iiahilities

-

Detined-benefit pension fund net asseis
Investments in own shares
Credits cxtended contmı to the lbunh paragraph of Articles 56 of the Banking Law
Investments in the capital of banking, fımmcial and insurance entities that are nutside the scope of regulator>
consolidaıion, net of eligible shorı positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued shure capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

-

Signilicant investments in the common stock of banking, linancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope ol
regulaton’ consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 0% threshold)

- —_______

Moftgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)
Deferrcd ıa’< ussets arising from temporaiy diffrrences (amount above 10% threshold. net of reloted tux Iiability)

—_________Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (as set out in the paragraph 2 of the Provisional Anicle 2 of the Regulation on
Banks’ Own Funds)

of which: signilicant inveslmcnts in the common stock of linancials
of which: mongage servicing rights
of which: deferred tax assets arising from ıemporary differences

-

National specific regulatory adjustments wlıich shall be determined by the Board
Regu)alnn’ adjusımenıs applied in Common Lquitv Tier 1 due to insuflicient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cove
ieductions
Fotal regulatory adjustments ta Common eguity Tier 1
Common Lquity Tier t capital (CLT!) 233,593

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL
Preffered shares that are not included in Common Lquity Tier 1 capital and related shares issue premiums -

Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency
-

Eligible capital instnıments and relevant sharc issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the puşoses of -

the Provisional Anicle 1 of the Regulation on Banks Own Funds)
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory odjustments —
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instmments

Reciprneal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 inslmments
lnvestments in the capital of banking. fnancial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulator>
consolidation, net of eligible shon positions. vhere the bank does not own more thaı 10% of the issued common
share capita! of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
Significanı invesıments in (hc capital of hanking. önancial and insurance entities (hat are outside Lhe scopc of
regulatoıy_consolidation_(net_of eligible_shon_positions)
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Regulatory Adjustments which wili be deductcd from Tier 1 capital during the transition period 235

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related defered (wx Iiabilities which vilI not deducted from Common Eguit 235

her 1 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Owr
Funds (-)
Net delrred tax asseUliability vhich is not deducted from Common Lguity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the sub
paraaraph_of the Provisional Article 2 of the_Regulation_on_Banks’_Own_Funds_(-)

Regulatoıy adjustments app(ied to Additional Tier 1 due 10 insutiicient Tier 2 to cover deductions

fotal regulatory adjustments ta Additianal Tier 1 capital

fotal Additional Tier 1 capital

Total Tier 1 capital (Tier 1 capital = Cammon Eguity Tier 1 capibıl + Additional Tier 1 capital) 233J5

TIER 2 CAPITAL

Eligible capital instmments and relevam share issue premiums (hat are approved by the Agenc

Eligible capitai instmments and relevant share issue premiums (hat are approved by the Agency (For the purposes of
the Provisional Anicle 4 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds)

Provisions 3.1 Il

Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 3,111

Tier 2 capital: regulatorv adjustments

Investments in own Tier 2 inslmments

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 insımmenls

lnvestments in the eapital of banking. linancial and insurance entities that are oubide the scope of reQulaıoR
:onsolidation. net of eligible shon positions. vhere Ihe hank does not own more than 10% of the issued commoı
share_capiıal_of the_entity_(amount_ahove the 10%_Ihreshold)_1-)

Signifcant investments in the capital banking. linancial and insurance entities (hat are outside the scope of regulaıon
:onsolidation (net of elicible short posiıions) (-1
National specifle rcgulatory adjustments %hich shall be determined h’ the Board

Fotal regulalory adjustments la Tier 2 capital
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND
RİSK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Total Tier 2 capital 3.110

Total Capital (The sam of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) 236,46N

The Sam ofTier 1 Capital and Ticr 2 Capital (Total Capital)
Credits extended contra to the provisions of Anicles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law
Portion of (hc suni of the banks’ ani estate net book values. which is in excess of flfty per cem of their own funds and
net book values of those of mefthandise and real estate which ha’e to be acquired due to their receivables and
disposed of pursuant to Ariclc 57 of the Banking Law. which canno be disposed of despite the lapse ofa period of
fıve years since the date of such acguisition -
National specilic regulaton adjustmcnts which shall be delerrnined by the Bnard -

- Regulatory Adjustments whieh wili be dcductcd from Total Capital during the transition period

—

Investments in the capital of banking. flnancial and insurance enlities that are outside the seope of regulatoıy
consolidation. net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capitai of the entity (amount above the 10% threshoid) which wili not deducted from Common Eguity Tier 1
capital, Mditional Tier 1 capital, her 2 capital ibr the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Ağicle 2
of the Regulation on Hanks’ Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the Additionaf Tier 1 capiatl and 11cr 2 capital of banking, financial and insurance entities -—_________

dat are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation. net of eligible shon positions (amount above 10% threshold)
which ıyi!! not deducted from Common Fguity Tier 1 capital. Additional Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital for the purposes
of the first sub-pararaph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Signifıcant investments in the common stock of banking. financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation. net of eligible short positions(amount abnve 10% threshold). mortgage servicing rights
(amount above 10% threshold), defered tı’< assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshnld.
net of related tax liability) which wili not deducted from Common Eguity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the first
sub-paragraph of the Provisional AnicIe 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds <-) - —_________

OWN FUNDS
Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) 236,468

Total Risk Veighted Assets 329.405

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATİOS
Common Equit Tier 1 Capital Adequacv Ratio (%) 70.9!’?

her 1 Capital Adequacv Ratio (%) 7Q83./

Capital Adequeac Ratio (9a) 71.79?
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND MSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

BUFFERS

Institution specitic buflir requirement 0.63%

of whieh: capital conservation bulTer reguirement (%) 0.63%

of which: hank specifle countercyclical buffcr reguirement (%)

The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier 1 capital which wili be calculated by the first paragraph of the Article 4 ot
Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital buliers to Risk Weighted Assets (%) —

Amounts below the thresholds for_deduction_(before_risk_weighting) —

Non-signiflcaııt investments in the capital of other flnancials

Significant investments in the common stock of flnancials

Mongage servicing rights (net of related tax Iiability)

Defimed tax assets arising from temporaiy differences (net of related tax liability)

Applicable caps on the inelusion of provisions in Ticr 2 capitnl
Provisions eligible tör inclusion in Ti 2 in rcspect of cxposurcs subject to siandardised approach (prior to application ofeap)

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 tınder standardised approach

Provisions eligible for inclusion in 11cr 2 in respect of exposures subject to intemal ratings-based approach (prior to application ü

cap)

Cap for nclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under intemal ratiogs-hased approach

Capital instruments subject to phnse-out arrangements (oniy applicable between 1 Jan 2018 and t Jan 2022

Current cap on Additional Tier 1 capital instmments which subject to phase out arrangements in the Provisional Aaicle
4 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds
Amount excluded flom ATI due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) which subject to Provisional
Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds

Curent cap on Tier 2 capital instmments which subject to phase out arangements in the Provisional Article 4 of the
Regulation on Banks Own Funds

Amount excluded from 12 due to cap (excess over cap atler redemptions and maturities) which subject to Provisional
Articlc 4 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds
(t,) Anıounts İŞI t/üs colou,,,n represents the anıvonis qf items t/sat <ve suhject tv transition pravisians in aceordance iri!!: t/le tes;:proraty Artides of
Regu/alions regardhsg ta ehanges an I?egzdatian an Equiw af Hanks “ and «iken mtv considerativ,, al the end of transition process.
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İNFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANC[AL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 December
2015(9

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPİTAL
Paid-in capital lo be Entılled for Compensation after Ali Crcditors 255,000
Share premium

-

Sharc canceilation profit -
Legal reserves 321
Income passed Ofl [0 sharcholders’ equity in accordance with TAS -

Profit
Net Income for current period
Priorperiod profı[

Provisions for possible risks —
Bonus shares ofAssociatcs, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures -
Common EgulIy Ticr 1 Capitıti Hefore Deductions 255,324
Deducoons From Common Eguity Tier 1 Capital
Loss excess ofresenes and loss passed 01110 shareho!dcrs’ equıty in aceordance 1511h TAS (-) 24772
Leasehold lrnprovcments (-) 26
GoodwiIl and other inrnngibie asscts and related defened Ia’ iiabilities. (-) 168
Net detbred tax incomdexpense (-) 99
Shares noncomplian[ th anicle 56/1 of the Law (-)
Direct or indimct invcstmcnts on Hanks own Common Ti 1 Capital (-) -
‘Fotal net long position eceeding 0% of Hanks Common Ticr 1 capiml, helonging 10 ınveslrnents on
own funds of henka and flnanciai ins[huıions tha[ are not consolidated, wıth a shareholding of 10% and
helow
TomI net long position exceding 10% of Hanks Common Ticr 1 capiul, belonging to investmenıs on
own funds of hanks and financial institut,ons that am not consolidated, wilh a shareholding of 10% and
above
Righls of providing mongage [nice excecdıng 10% of Common Tier 1 capital (-) -
Deffered tax assets based on tempomry difTerences exccuding 0% of Common Tier 1 capital 1-) -
Balances in accordance wiih [hc tcmpomB’ anicle 212 of Regula[ion on Sharcholders’ Equity of Banks
exceeding 5% of Common Tier 1 capibi (-)
Excess amount arising fom bini net long position belonging 1° investmenls on Common Tier 1
Capital of hanks and rınancial insti[u[ions [hat are not consolidaled, wiih ashareholdingabove 10% -
Excess amount arising from riglıts ofproviding mongage senice (-) -
[xceess amount arising ftom deflired tax assets based on ıcmporaıy difTerences (-)
Other items detemıined by hoard (-) -
Deduction amount fom Common Tier 1 Capital in case ofshodage of additional Tier 1 capital or
supplementaty capital 1-)
Total Deducilons Umm Common Eguity Tier lCopiIai 25,365
Totul Common Eguliy Tier lCapilai 229,959
ADDITIONALTIER 1 CAPITAL
Premiums ofprıvılege share capital not included in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
Dcbt instmments which is seen apprnpriate by corporation and premiums in accordance wıth dıcse
instmments ( Issued after 1.1.2011> -
Debı instrumLmıs vhıch is seen approprıale by coşonlion and premiums in accordancew ili these
!rstmmcn[s > Issud before 1.1.2014) -
Additional ‘[ler t Cnpilni Before Deduc6ons -
Deductions From Addilionul Tier 1 Capital
Direct or ındirect ır,vcsımenıs which bank providt fr ııs’ own addıtional Tier 1 capital 1-)
10% excecd pan of Common Tier i capibl of bank from the sum of pannership share on banks and
financ:ai institutıons that are not consolidated, wıth a shareholdıng in [haa 10% (.) -
10% exceed pan otCommon Tier t capital ofbank from [hc sum ofpannership sbam on hanks and
Or.ancıal ıns[ilu[ıons ihat am not consolıdated, “i[h a shareholdıng of 10% and above (-) -
Oher itcms de[crm:ned be hoard ()
Dcductıon amuun[ ofaddilional core capisal in case of[hcre is not enough addilionzi core capi[ai or
suppiemcnurv captial t-) -
Tom 1 Ded un onu Umm A d dil ona 1 Tl er t ü, p1 lui —
Tolul Addilionni 11cr 1 Cupitul —
Ded ııclions Erom Tier 1 Cııpitul —
Non deduc[ed Common Tier 1 capital pan in accordance wılh deflned mx expense and goodwill
impairment and oıhcr inongihle flxed assets which is in temporaıy aniclc 211 ofkegulation of
Sharegolders’ qui[y of Hanks. (-)
Non deduç[cd Common Tier 1 capital pan in accordance wiih net deferred mx income/expense whiciı
is in lemporarv anicic 2/1 of Reguia[ion ofSharegolders’ Eguitv of Hanks. (.) 49
Tolul Tjer 1 Cupilıd 229,810
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PASHA YATİRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIBATED FİNANCİAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continucd)

31 Decemlıer 2015(9
SUI’PLEMENTARY CAI>ITAL
Debt instruments whieh is seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance with these
inslmments (Exponed after 1 1 .20 11)
Debt instruments which 5 seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance with these
inslmments (Exponed before 1.1.2014)
Pledgcd sourrcs to bank tom shareholdcrs which is used for share capital increasing ofbank
General Provisions 2,670
Supplcmcntary Capital Before Dcductions 2,670
Deducilons From Supplementary Capital
Direct or indiren investments which bank provides for it? own supplementrny capital (.)
10% exceed part of Common Tier 1 capital of bank from the sum of pannership share on hanks and
flnancial institutions that am not consolidated, with a shareholding less than 10% (.)
10% exceed part of Common Tier 1 capilal of bank from the sum of partnership share on hanks and
Onancial institutions that are not consolidated, with a shareholding of 10% and above (‘)
Other ilems delenııined hy board (.3
Total Deductions Erom Supplementaıy Cupitol
Total Supplementary Capital 2,67<)
CAPI’l’AL 232,380
Loans extended being noncompliant with articles 50 and 51 ofthe Law (-)
Net book values of properties owned, exceeding 50% of hanks’ equity and properties, and trade goods
ovenakcn in exchange for Ioans and mceivahles that should be disposed within five years in
accordance with article 57 of the Law, but not yet disposed (.3
Investments to loans extended (0 hanks, financial inslitutions (domestic and abroad) and qualified
shareholders, iLe secondary subordinated oan and debt instruments purchased from these inslitutions
issued, like primary and secondary subordinated ban (.3
Deduction from equity in accordance with 2nd article of 2Oth hem in Regularity of Measurement and
Vabuation ofCapital Adequacy of Hanks (.)
Other accounls determined by board (-)
Non deducted pan ofcomon equity tierl , additional core and supplementrny capilal in accordance
with tempomıyanicle2/l of Regulationofsharegolders’ Equity of Hanks wlıich is 10% exceed pan
ofCommon Tier 1 capital of bank from the sum of pannership share on hanks and tinancial
institutions Ihat are not consolidated, with a shareholding Iess than 0% (.)
Non dcducted pan ofcomon equity ticri, additional core and supplementaıy capital in accordanee vith
temporary anicle Vi of Regulation of Sharegolders’ Equity of Hanks which is 0% exceed pan of
Common Tier 1 capital of bank from the sum of pannership share on hanks and financial institutions
that are not consolidated, with a shareholding of 10% or above (-)
Non deducted pan of comon equity tierl generating from exceed amount generating from investmenls
to Common Tier 1 capitais of pannership share on hanks and financial institutions that are not
consobidated, with a shareholding of 0% and above, temporary ditterences of delbred tax income and
the right of oflring mongage seMces explained in the istand 2nd pamgmphs of temporaiy anicle 2
of Regulation of Shareholders’ Eguity of Banks. ()
SIIAREIIOLDERS’ EQUITY 232,480
Amouots IIeIow Overrun Amounts bn Applied Reducing I>rocedııres 382
Amount generabing from long position of investmenls to slıarcholders’ equıty and pannership share on
hanks and financial institutions that are not consolidaıed, with a sharelıolding lcss than 10%
Amount generaling from long position of invesımenıs to slıareholders’ equity and pannership share on
hanks and financial institutions tlıat are not consolidated, with a shareholding of 0% or above.
Amount generating ftom right of oflüring mongage service
Amount generating from lempomry ditTerences of defened income tax income

(9 Talat capilal has haeıı calcolated in accordance ırUh the “Regıdations regarding ta changes on Regulation on
L’qınn’ qf Banks “ ectivefroın dale 31 Match 2016, the infonnation giyen in the prior period colnmn has ha’,,
calculated pursuani toformer regulation.

382
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT3İ MARCH 2016
(Amourns are eprcssed in ıhousands ofTurkish Lira (tL) unless oıhcrwise stated,)

INFORJW4TION RLATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSITION AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b. Information about instruments dm1 wili be included in total capital calculation:

No ne.

Il. EXPLANATIONS ON CURRENCY RİSK

The Banks foreign cunency position is managed within the Iimits set by legislation and the Bank.
The bask principle in foreign currency risk management is not to be exposed lo cunency risk.
Aceordingiy, the exchange-trading risk positions are not allocated to the limit, banking accounts as of
the cuneney by ereating a matched asset-Iiability strueture is airned to provide natural proiection. The
Bank uses derivative financial instruments such as lbnvard foreign exchange contracts and curreney
swaps for hedging purposes in foreign currency denominated transactions.

Banks methodology of digitising the foreign currency position includes the use of standard method
when calculating the capital adequacy ratio and appiication of intemal stress tests/ sensitivity analysis.

The Bank’s publicly announced foreign exchange bid rates as of the dale of the fınancial statements and
for the last Fıve business days prior to that date:

Bid Rate 2 .8249 3.2090

USD EURO

1. Bid rate 2.8334 3.208!
2. Bid rate 2.8695 3.2114
3. Bid rate 2.8733 3.2082
4. Bid rate 2.8705 3.2049
5. Bid rate 2.8789 3.2141

The simple ariihmetic average
the balance sheet date:

of the Bank’s foreign exchange bid rates for the last thir’ days preceding

Ariihmetic average -30 days 2.8839

By 31 December 2015; The Bank’s USD bid rate is2.9 161 and EUR bid rate is 3.1838.

USD
31 March 31 December 3! March il December

2016 2015 2016 2015

EURO

2.9177 3.1613 3.1770
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

İnformation on curreney risk of the Bank:

The following table shows the Foreign cuneney net general position of the bank on the basis of
foreign eıırrencies. in accordance with GAAP, assets whiclı are indexed to foreign curreney are
shown on financial siatements as TL rather Ihan foreign eurrencies.

Asseis which are indexed to foreign currency are considered as foreign currency item in calculation
of foreign currency net general position. in accordance with the “Regulation on Caicuiation and
lmplementation of Foreign currency net general position/equity standard rate by banks on
consolidated and non-consolidated basis”, marketable derivative financial assets, hedge derivative
financial assets, defered tax asset and paid in cash expenses in assets: general provisions, deferred
tax liabilitv. marketable derivative financial liabilities. hedge dedvative financial liabilities and
equities in liabilities are taken into account in calculation of exchange risk. Therefore. there are
difterences between foreign currency assets and liabilities total included in table below and those
included in balance sheet. Actual Foreign currency position of the Bank is shown in the table below
in flnancial and economic context.
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İNFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLWATED FINANCİAL POSİTİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 Mnrch 2016
Assets

Cash and Balances with The Central Bank of the
RepublicofTu rky

-

Due From Banks
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Protit or
Loss
nıerbarıLMoneyMarket Placernents

Available-lör-sale Financial Assets
Loans()
Invcstments in Associates. Subsidiaries and Joint
Ventures

__JJ4dnJyjystş
Heding Derivative Financial Asscts

____________

Tanbk şşetş,_

____ _____ ____

lntanııiblc Assets

_______

Other Asseis

(9 Foreign cxchange ınkcd oans amounııngiolL 26,919 (31 Derenıber 20)5 TL 23,836) ore also ipıcludd.
Fonvnrd aııd swap Ir,nowflons neltıded.

LUR: USD Othcr FC Total

‘3

289
14,191
3,369

-- 14.193
3,658

14,883 63,522 78,405

- -l

36
TotalAsse(s 15,174 81,118 .1 96292
--..--------- --------

Linbilitles 1 —

Bank Deposits
,_ . —

FeignÇprgy Dcposits .2 ._..__,: - -

Fds From interbank Money Market -- ,, —

. —-_______

Funds Borrowed From Other Financial lnstitutions 15,033 67.191 82.224
Marketable Seeurities Issucd . -

Misceflaneousfayables
Liabilities

—

Other Liabilities 1 6 . -- 7
Total Liabilities 15,034 67,197 82,231

jiiince Sheet Position 140 13,921 14,061
cOIbalanceSheetPosition .....,

.. .: -

Financial Derivative Assets(’) . -

Financial Derivative Liabilities(”) . 11,300 . 11.300
Non-Cash Loans 24,071 39,79! 4.085 67.947

31 December 2015 - - -

TotalAssets
— —

..P4Ş5 89.355
-

TotalLiabilities
— -

6.409r -

[Net On-balance Sheet Position 8,646 14,183 10,234 33,0M
[oıancesheet Positip L. -- (8.438,) 08,384)!
L. Financial DerişativeAssets 1, 8.437k

.

Financial Derivadve Liabilities - 16.875 8.384 . 35259
Non-Cash Loons 24.10! 41,563 1.6661 67,330
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“rL”) unless othenvise stated.)

İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

İİİ. EXPLANATİONS ON INTEREST RATE RİSK

Interest rate risk is the risk that expresses the effects of fluctuations in the market interest rates on the
value inerease/decrease of the Bank’s interest rate sensitive assets and Iiabilities.

The interest rate sensitivity ofAssets, Liabilities and Off-balance sheet items is carefuliy followed up by
the treasuıy department of the Bank. Assets and liabilities which are sensitive to interest are managed in
such a way that minimizes the interest risk.

The interest rate risk of the banking items is measured legaliy in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Standard Shock Method on the interest rate risk arising from banking
accounts”, and this legal limit is monitored and reported monthly, based on this measurement.

Interest rate sensitivity of the Bank:

a. Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items based on repricing
dates

!

Non
Up to 1 1-3 3-12 5 Year Interest

31 March 20!L...___fl1oı!P_, Months Months.lğYear - and over - Bearing Total
Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectivcs. Cash in
Transit. Cheques Purchased) and Balances
with The Central Bank of the Republic of

—.

Ş6
....: J... — 442,J

DueFrornBanks J5qq6 - -— .---- -
Financial Asseis aL Fair Value Through -
ProfiULoss - 768 - - - 768

Jntçrbk Money Market Placernents --— —--t- —--—----- - t :
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 217 32 11.412! 1,007 - - 12,668
Loan s 137 Ş6 .J7li .

Hc 4:o-,M Jve!fls —j_----—: -:

9th ere şj ..— - t
JM,Assets 166,625 98,2 JP1!

Liabilities

fi”1P Jj__..: ,,,,.
OtherDeposıts —
Funds From lntcrbank MoneyMarket J018t4 t .., - - i2!t4.

- - 15 15
Marketable Securities lssued - - - - - - -
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial
Institutions 9.161 7.099 32.910, 40.152 -ı - 89,322
Other Lıabılıtıes (**) 247531 247531

T Un bi tks
-

19 975 ,O 99 32 91Q 40 !.2 24 ,546 4,4

BalanLe SheLt Lon Posıtion 146 6501 53 485 65 382! 26T3T7
Balance Sheet Sho Position -[ - -, 35.972 - 229.545 265.517
Of1h4nc SheetLongPosition . .

. t - .. - -; - -
Off-balance Slıeet Short Position - - - - - - —

Total Position 146,650, 53,485 65.382! (35,972) - (229,545)r -
t 9 Olhnr ansata ineluden mincellanecus neceivublen. ungihle Annens, intangible Annetn and non—inlerels hearing u,setn in otlıer annntn and sax anad,.

Shareholdnrn’ equily. non-inleret, hnaning liahil ilie, in olhcr liahilitie, and sax liability in presenned ander ‘‘Osher t.iahilit ies” in the ‘Non-Intacan Beaning’ column.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCIAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non
Up fr 1 1-3 3-121 5 Yearj Interest

3iDccernbcr2Oi5 h Moı.!iı...ML9Mk, 5Ycar1 and over] Bearing Total
.44S5tS ----—.-..-

Cnsh (Cash in Vault. Ellectives. Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purehased) and
Balances with The CIIRT 11.772 - - - - 891 12,663
Dua Erom Banks 26.015 - - - - 21342 47357
Financial Assets nt Fair Valuc Through
ProtiULoss - 604[ - - - - .

_Jrqnçyfr!i4cjfIacim9nIs . -% 1
Available-for-Sale Financial Asseis 256 9.363 - - - 9.619
Loans 105.683. 41.188 52.357 2.164 44,052 - 245,734

— — — 1 —i- 1 -— t —— —
- .——-- -ı __.n..._J1!?__6.fl8

Tj_şş_____L .144,7L_A2Q2!L_1,720İ 2.164 44,QŞ2

Liabilities

_____

L.._________ ıt

FundsFromInerbanLMonefl4arka -
Miscellaneous Pavables

______

- -

_______

-ı -: -; 1001 100
-- —--.r-_---

Marketable Securıfles Issued - -r —ı -. -ı -.
Funds Borroued From Other Financial . ‘

- .__.._ __. 2LŞ___.ZL 21.086 4LI99j t..z
Other Liabilities (“) -:

_____-

-: -ı 250.994 250.994
Total Lıabdıtıes - - 9125 — -- 21,086311001 D25ı,094322,3os

2.092 443 —
Balance Sheet Short Position - - 38.936 - 222.143 261.379

- og-baıance Sheet LonnPosition -i -ı -. —r -! -.

- .._t_-I _...:L._____
Total Position 134.6oiT 42,092Y 40.634 38,936’ 44,052 222,3331 -

OScr assel, ncIuL’., rnr,ct113ne0u. rr.eivab!es. ıssgib:e Ajaan. innargbIc Mscnn ,nd ,,on-tnırcn, hcarıng assen in otirer assen, and ta, a,sen,
(•j 5t,rehrrdcrn’ eqJiıy. n -‘mrrt’s bcarirt IıbiIirr, n ohrr ,ahiii%ns and ta, I:ahiiıy. horTosirg nünda in pesscrri ur1er Oıhcç Liabitires” in the Nnn-lnıeresı fleanirg colanır.
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İNFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL POSİTİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b. Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments:

The average interest rates in the following tables are calculated by weighting the simple interest ta
principle amounts.

‘ii Mareh 2016 EL’R % CSD JPY % TL %
-

- zz LzliZZZ zzz
Cash (Cush in Vault. Elleciives. Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purehased) and Balances
with the CBRT - 0.49 - 4.44
Due From Hanks - 0.28 - 10.79
Financial AsseLs at Fair Value Through
ProfıdLoss - - . -
InterbankMonev Market Placements - - - 10.95
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets - - . 9.10
Loans 1Ş9.___Ş5
HeId-to-MaturitLlnvestmenls -. -1 -; -

Liabilities

ZL
OtherDepLts

— ..z... -
FundsFrominterbankMone Market --9M

Marketable Securities lssued J -L - - -
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial tost. 1 2.251 3.35 . 1 1.04

. 1
31 December 2015
ği

i....—---.—.,—.——..--—

Ca (Cash in VauIL. Ellectives, Cash in
Transit. Clteques Purchased) and Balances
with the CBRT -; . -
Duc From Hanks - 0.99. . 10.60
Financial Assets al Fair Value Through ı
ProFıvLoss

. -, . -
Interbank Monev Market t’Iaccments -: -: 10.95
Avaitable-tbr-SaIe Financial Assets 8.80
Loans 4.80 4,82 12.28
HeId-to-Maturiıy lnvestrncnis . 1

-
Liabilities

BankDeposits -
.

OtherDeposits
.——.———-——,, —

Funds From Intcrbank Mont>ı Marktt — — 9 79
MiscellancousPayables

... - -
Marketable Securitles (ssued -: - .
Funds Borro”ed From Oıher Financial Inst 2.01 3.2W -I 10.75

İV. EXPLANATİONS ON EQUİTY POSİTİON RİSK

The Bank does not Iıold equity position as of 31 March 2016 (31 December 2015: None).

36
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

V. EXPLANATIONS ON LIQUIDITY RİSK MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY COVERAGE
RATIO

a) Information on risk capacity, responsibilities and structure of liquidity risk management,
reporting of liquidity risk at bank, Iiquidity risk management including how liquidity risk
strategy, policy and implementations communicates with board of directors and business units:

Liquidity risk is the risk occurring asa result of non-availability of sufflcient cash on hand or cash
inflow lo meet eash outflows in a timeiy manner completely asa result of imbalance in cash flows.

Treasuıy department manages dıe Iiquidity of the Bank daily and infomıs assets and İiabiiities
comınittee weekly about the Iiquidity level of the Bank. Treasuıy department is responsible For planning
Iiquidity management. taking measures and informing the senior management ofaforementioned issues.

The Bank forms its assets and liabilities in balance notto create a negative gap on cumulative basis in
maturity segments.

in accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidiry Adequacy of Banks”
entered into force after published on Offlciai Gazene dated November 1,2006 and numbered 26333 by
BRSA. weekly simple average of total Iiquidity adequacy rates related to primaş’ maturity segment and
total liquidity adequacy rate related to secondaiy maturity segment cannot be less than 100% while
weeklv simple average of foreign currency Iiquidity ratio related to primary maturity segment and
foreign currency adequacy rate related to secondaiy maturity segment cannot be Iess than 80%.

Treasurv department manages the Iiquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and Iiabihities
committee weekly about the Iiquidity level of the Bank. Treasury department is responsible for planning
Iiquiditv management, taking measures and informing the senior management of aforementioned issues.

Financial planning and control department is legally responsible for measuring and reporting of hiquidity
risk. Stress test apphied to Iiquidity position and calculation of liquidity coverage rate is perfomıed by
Risk Management Department.

Risk Management Department monitors relaled unit’s activities and repoıt to the Senior Management
monthly.

b) Information on centralization grade of Iiquiditş management and funding strategy and its
functionality among Bank and its afilhiates:

Thıere is no structured Iiquidity management requiring centralization between bank and its affıhiates.

e) Information on funding strategy of the Bank ineluding policies re!ated to diversity of funding
son rces and pcriods:

The main funding sotırces of the Bank are Funds provided by domestic and foreign banks and repo
transactions and money market transactions and diversifıcation of aforementioned sources are made in
order to minimize liquidity risk. Financial lnstitutions Department carries out studies which are required
related to sııpplying of long tenıı foreign source.
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İNFORJWATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL POSITION AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ç) İnfurmation on liquidity management based on currencies forming at least 5% of total
Ikabilities of the Bank:

Aimost ali the ijabjiities of the Bank consists ofTL, USD and EUR and equities mainiy forms the TL
sources.

TL Iiquidity of the Bank is managed through funds provided from domestic and foreign banks via repo
transactions made in BIST using high quality (premium) securities.

TL and foreign curency cash flow of the Bank in scope of Baiance sheet management is monitored
separateiy. Risk Managemem Department reports to ALCO weekiy and Board of Directors ona
monthly basis.

d) İnformation on liquidity risk rednction techniques

Liquidity Iimits are determined in order to keep the risk regarding liquidity risk in deflned limits and to
monitor iiquidity position. The aforementioned limits have been determined in accordance with
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Liquidity Adequacy” in Risk Limits document
and approved by Board of Directors.

e) Disclosure regarding use of stress test

At least one of the foliowing liquidity stress tesis related to issues mentioned beiow is appiied monthiy
and result of the reiated test is reported to Board of Directors by Risk Management Department.
- Negative influence of economic crisis occurring in domestic fınance markets on the liquidity
of ilie bank.
- Negative influence of global crisis on the liquidity of the Bank.
- Negative influence of a problem occurred within the Bank (abuse, fraud, reputation risk etc.).

Threshold of weekly and monthly liquidity rate for stress tests which shail be applied for
abovementioned scenarios 15 taken into consideration as 80% for foreign currency assets/liabilities and
as 100% for bini assets/liabilities.

O Information related to emergdncy and unexpected situation plan for Liquidity:

“Ernergeııcy and unexpected situation plan For Liquidity” is approved by the Board of Directors and
established in order to manage possible liquidity crisis and required acuons for losses which can occur
in extraordinary conditions are determined with preventing mechanisms and liquidity squeeze scenarios.
The scope of the aforementioned plan is to pre-determine applicable scenarios and rneasurement of
liquidity risk and the actions which shali be taken iowards those risks.
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

a. Liquidity ratios realized in the current period

—
- First Nlnturily Tranehe LWeç!yL__Şçç lyyjty TranchcMonthi>L_

FC FC+Td FC+TI

il Mureh 2016

AvemEe (%) 28 620 I5( 59

Max mum(%) .__JİM
Minimum (%) 131 374 9Ç 322

-

. Sccond Maturiy Tranche<> onthIy

EC FC+TL Fcl FC+TI

Il December 2015

Y,f4.) — — 4199t -
dl8 -

2,157 2348

IH!UIH% .. -

Minimum (%) 120 390 82 382

b. Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Referring to the BRSA’s announeement dated 29/12/2014. No: 30223; it k announced dm1 development
and investment banks’ consolidated and unconsolidated liquidity coverage ratio wiil be applied as 0%
by 2016 aceording to pamgraph 5 of article 4 of Regulations About Banks’ Liquidity Coverage Ratlo
Measurement.

Currcnt Pcriııd-3I.03.2016 [utal amount which t not Total amoant wlıiclı is upplied
applied consideration niCe consideration rate

Tr+vp 1 vi’ TP+VP 1 vi>
Hih-gunii1y Liguidty Asseis (İlLA)
t l-Iigh-guaiity Liguidty Asscts 11.001 1 6,723

Cash Ontflows
2 Real person assels and retail asscts . -

3 Stable assets . . . -

4 Lower Stabic US5L’LS —

5 Out ofjunior dcbts from real person assets and retail asseis 7336 5,727 9.065 6,479

6 Operational assets .

7 Non—opcratingasscts .

8 Other Junior debt 7,336 5.727 9,065 6.379

9 .Secured D’bıs . -

10 Oıhcr Cağı Outflows 31,753 26,910 12.644 13.212

Il Derivative liubililies and mümin habilities 27 3.970 27 4.077

12 Debts from Slmcluxd flnanciM instmments . -

13 Paymcnt commitments for dcbcs to (inancInI markcts and otlıcr off
halance stıcet Iiabiliıics 31,726 22,940 (2.617 9.135

14 Revocable off.halunce sheet odıer Iiabilities and other contractual
liabilities notwithstanding ta any conditions . - -

15 Other irrevocable or conditionally revocabk off-balance sheet Iiabilitics . . . -

16’FOTAL CASII OUTFLOWS 21.709 19.691
CASII INFLOWS

17 Sccurcd receivubles 1
18 Unsectırcd receivables 171.96<) 6.046 1 23.282 6.089

19 Other cash inflows 33 23 33 99

2OTOTAL CASII INFLOWS 171,993 6,069 123316 6.188
t’pper limit applied ,ımount

2ITOTALIILASTOCK 1 11.0011 6,723

22TOTAL NET CASII OUTFLOWS 5,4271 13.503

23 LIOU IDITY COVERAGE RATION (%) 1 202.69% 49.79%J
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITİON AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c. Breakdown ofasseis and liabilitles according to their outstanding maturities:

Held-to-Malurity Invcstmenls - - - - - . —

Other Assets ..Mt6
- ...z .:

... T. J4şş. ,.. —_____
fl,J4JjŞ,3 9. !N3z,.3??j 15,412 42,6 2Qfl 347,682

Liabililles
—-——_______

——

OtherDeposits
—___________ - :

MarLetable Securitiis Issued — — — —

() Asscts ilmi ali necessa,, ‘or hanking acıi’iıies and ilmi cannot be liquidaied in ilie ,hon-lerm. such as liid asseis, associales and subsidiaaies. simionaiy
s:ocb, prepaid espensas and oan, under 1 llow-up. am ciassifled in Iliis column.

t”) Siiarcbolders’ egUltY, prosions and cornmissions colleciid in adsancc ii presented under oiher liabiliises’ icin in lhe’ijnclassiüed’column.

40

Up 10 I I-3 3-12 5 ‘car undi
— —

— çımipd münih. .\!oflsh1.. J_!ujh1 1:5 Yen eri Unelassifledj4 Tatil

3lNlıurc 16
— - .

üsets -

Cash (Cash in Vault, Elfectivcs. Cash in 1 tTransit. Chcques Purchascd) and Balances
with the CBRT 4.499 I3.866L.._.__.L__j_ - 18.365

Due Fmm Banks 3.675: 15.0061 - - - - - 18,681
Financial Assets nt Fair Valme Tbrough
Proria’Loss

(erhan 0 ey Market Placemenis -

Available-for-Sale Financial Asset,
Laans

768

- 217
- 89,028

32 11,412
9.319 121.976

1,007
14,105

768

42.645

Funds From lnterbank Money Market

12,668

Miscellaneous Pavables

287.373

Funds Borowed From Other Financiul
lnslituüons

9.160 7.099 32.910
10,814 - -

40.152

‘5

89,322
10.814

Other Lmbflutus(’J_ 128 ZüjıZZ _ZLZ_J_ 239186247531
-. TotalLiabilitit,

_____

Ş.41,$Z
Net Mg i!y.Ç!p_____.. ._L...4P{Z1 97,7PJ,.QO
3lDecember2Ol5

_____ _____

IL -

Total Assets ] 22.233: Ioo.954j 56,53I 83.2ı5j 13.3o7[ 44.052j 2.1 I3j 322.405

Total Liabilities 10.272: 14.4341 -: 2l.086 41.100 - 235,5131 322.105

Net Liguidin Gap 11.961! 1(6520! 565311 62.129i (27.793) 34.052 (233,400)1
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INFORMATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITION AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Vi. LEVERAGE RATIO

Unconsolidated leverage ratio was realized as 47.15% (31 December 2015: 54.8%). The increase
occurred in the on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet transactions led to a change in leverage
compared to the previous period. Regulation has been linked to the provision of the minimum
leverage ratlo of 3%.

Current Pcriod Prior Period *

Asset On The Balance Sheet
Assets on the balance sheec (excluding deri’.aıivc ünancial instruments and ban
derivatives. ineludine collaterals) 335.998 309.195

(Assets deducted from core capital) 1 < 709) <737)

Total risk amount thr assets on the halance sheet 335.279 308.458

Derivative Financial Instruments and Loon Derivatives

Renewal cost of derivative fnancial instruments and ban derivatives 316 198

Potential credit risk amount of derivative tinancial instruments and ban derivatives 194 238

Total risk amount of derivative financial instmments and ban derivatives 51<) 736

Financing Trnnsactions With Securitles Or Goods Warrnnties
Risk amounı of tinancial transactions with securities or goods wananties (excluding
those in the balance sheet) 253 -

Risk amount urising from intermedialed tmnsactions - -

Tom! risk amounı of fınancina transactions %iıh securities or goods waranties 253 -

Off-the-Balance Sheet Trnnsnctions

Gross nominal amount of the otlthe-balance shcet tmnsactions 57.074 108.645

Adjustment amounı arisinu from mulciplving by the credit conversion rate - -

Total risk amount for oflıhe-balance sheet transnctions 157.074 108.645

Capital and Total Risk

Core capital 232.497 229.104

Tolal risk amount 493,432 417.839

Leverage Ratio

Leverage ratio 47.15% 54.8%
(*) The arithmctic avcraac of the ost thrce mondıs in the related periods.
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İNFORJVIATİON RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL POSITION AND RİSK
MANACEMENT (Continued)

Vii. EXPLANATİONS ON THE RİSK MANAGEMENT

Minimum
RWA capitol

requirements

31 31 31 Nlarch
Nlarch December 2016
2016 2015

Credit risk (excluding counterpany credit risk) (CCR) 307.855 238.111 24.628
2 Of which sandardised approach (SA) 307,855 238.114 24,628
3 Of whieh intemal raling-based (IRB) approaeh - - -

4 Counterparty eredit risk 429 200 34
5 Of which standardised approach lbr counterparty credit risk (SA

CCR) 429 200 34
6 Of which intemal model method (1MM) - . -

7 Eguity positions in banking book under market-based approach - - -

8 Eguity investments in funds — look-through approach - . -

9 Eguity investments in ftrnds— mandate-based approach - -

10 Eguity investments in funds — falI-back approach - - -

Il Settlement risk - - -

12 Securitisation exposures in banking book - - -

13 Of which IRB mtings-bnsed approach (REA) . -

14 Of whieh IRB Supervisoıy Fomıula Approoch <SFA) - - -

15 Of which SMsimpIified supcn’isory formula approach (SSFA) - -

16 Marketrisk 588 10,635 47
17 Of which standardised approach (SA) 588 10,635 47
18 Of which intemal model approaches (1MM) - - -

19 Operational risk 20.533 4.432 1.643
20 Of which Bask IndicatorApproach 20.533 4.432 1.643
21 Of which Standardised Approaeh - -

22 Ofwhich Advanced Measurement Approaeh - -

23 Amounts below the thrcsholds for deduction (subjcet 10 250% risk
weight) - -

24 Floor adjustment - - -

25 Total (1+4+7+8+9+10+11+12+16+19+23+24) 329,405 253.381 26352
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL POSITION AND RİSK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

VIİI. EXPLANATIONS ON OPERATING SEGMENTS

Net Inlerest Income/(Loss)
Net Ece and Commission lncome/(Loss)
Tradingoain/(Loss)
Other Operating Sernents Gain/(oss)
Provisions for Loan Losses and Other Receivables(-)
Other Operatin Expense (-)
Profıt Before Tax
Tax Provision
Net Pre fıt

7,626
261

(130) 7,496
261

377, 377
117 117

(440>

, Corporate Trcasury and Asset
CurrcntPeriod Banıing LiMiIity Managemcat
Total Asscts 287,373 60,309 347,682
Total Liabilities 128 347.554 347,682

ZZ Z .TZZTZZ Z4ZZZZ’ZZ ZZZZ*

(440)

7,447

7,447

(3,547)
(3,183)

(898)
(4,08 1)

(3,547)
4,264
(898)
3,366

Previous Period
I’otal Assets
Total Liabilities

Corporate Banidog
245,744

10,272

Treasury and Asset
Liability Management

76,661
3 12, 133

Total
322,405
322,405

Net Interest lncome/(Loss) 17,647 7,374 25,021
Net Ece and Commission Income/(Loss) 345 345
Tradingüainl(Lnss)

-

1,192 1,102
OtherOperating Segments Gain/(Loss) - 7 97
Provisions for Loon Losses and Other Receivables(-) (2,178) (2.178)

Other Ppera6ngExpnşe(-
— — - :...... 9 !..2 9•3 >

Profıt Before Taz 15,814 (4,330) 11,484
Tax Provision - (2,697) (2,697)
Net Prolit 15,814 (7,027) 8,787
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SECTION FWE

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO
UNCONSOLIDATED FUÜNCL4L STATEMENTS

1. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO ASSETS

1. Information related to cash and the account of The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey
(the “CBRT”):

a. Information on cash and the account of the CBRT:

31 March 2016 31 December 2015
TL Et TLJ FC

Cash/Foreiçneurrency 4, 6
ÇB RT ,4 ‘61 782: ÜLŞİQ.
Other - -, - -

Total 3,172 14,193: 788, 11,875

Information on the account of the CBRT:

L 31 MarchZOi6 j 31 December
T14 FcI T14

4.1641 323 782 98

rime Unrestricted Amoun( -. -, - -

fime RestricLed Amount - l3.866 - 11.772
Fotal 4,163 I4,I89, 782. 11.870

According to CBRT’s “Required Reserves Announcement” numbered 2005/1, for Turkish
cuneney and foreign currencv denominated liabilities, resen’e requirement amounts held in
CBRT lıave been included in the above table.

2. Information on fınancial assets at fair value through profit or Ioss:

a. As of 31 March 2016. the Bank has no fınancial assets at fair value through profıt or loss
subject in repo transactions (31 December 2015: None).

As of3 1 Marclı 2016; there are no and ünancial assets giyen as collateral/are blocked
(31 December 2015: None).

b. Positive differences related to trading derivative financial assets:

c. İnformation on trading securities:

None (3! December 2015: None).
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31 March 2016 : i December20l5
TIi FC Tt. FC

Fonvard - .. . .

. t H . .
,

768j

Ol[
FuLures , -: -.

opılons .

. .-L
Other - -

Total 768 - 604 -
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3. Information on banks:

a. Information on banks:

k Information on foreign hanks accounts:

Unrestricted Amount Res(rictcd Amount
31 March 31 December 31 Mnrch 31 December

20 2015 Q.W
EuropcanUnionCoun des ‘90J
USA, Canada 3,36 10,808 -

EÇpçountries<*) .- —

Other 2,00 12.234
Total 5.658 23,329

(*) OECD Countries other than EU countrics, USA and Canada.

4. Information on available-for-sale fınancial assets:

a. As of3l Mareh 2016 there are fınancial assets giyen as collateml/blocked amounting to TL
1.013 (31 December2ül5: TL 1,026).

As of3l Mareh 2016 there are available-for-sale fınancial assets subject to repo transactions
TL 11,151(31 December2ol5: None).

31 March 2016 31 December 2015
Debt Securitles 12.671 9.638
,9uotpnStockExhange 12.671 .Ş38
,JSpPuotL .. r._ -

Share Certircates - . -

Qqpte4,çQŞt9ç Exchane
NotQu oted

- -

Impa n!ıt!o [şjgn (± Ç3
Total 12,668 9.619

31 Mareh 2016 31 December 2015-
TL -— FC TL

Banks

Domestic 13,023 - 24,028 -

ejgn - 2.00t 3658 .ilPPP 2
Headquaners and Branehes
Abroad - . -

Total I5,023 3,658 26,028 21329

45



CONVENİENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURKİSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless othenyise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5. Explanations on Ioans:

a. Information on alt types of loans and advances giyen to shareholders and employees of
the Bank:

: 31 March 2016 31 December2Ol5

-..

CÜSh Non-Co ŞJİ Cashj NenÇ•şjş
Dircet Loans Granted to Shareholders 22,652 22,475

Ü.,., L..
Individuals .

Indirect Loans Granted to Shareholders . — -

Loans Oranted to Employees -1
Total - 22,652 -1 22,475

b. Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including loans
that have been restructured or rescheduled:

! S(nndard Loans and Loans and OtIıcr Receivables Under Ciose

-

- Other Receivahles \Ionitoring - -

Loans and Lonns and olher rcceivabks Loans and Loans and otlıer receivahles
Othe4 wiih revised contrnct İerms Otlıeij with revised contract (erms

1 ReceivahIes Restructured or ReccivabIc, Rcsiructured or
.. 1 <TQ!1X.......J< qççd!.ed Other hç•d!!d

Non-.speiaI!zed Loans ı78,9.841 : —

Loans giyen Loenlerprises -

- 1Q2 -

kns 4L 84Ş7•_••
.

lmportLoan
_ ___.____t_.._____j______.,,.,,..L ——t._______

Loans Granted to Financial 132,48! . j
Sector

Consumer Loans . . 4
Credit Cards . — .

Other 42,645 1

Spec .____

Olher Receivables .
. J

bini 278,984 8,38 . J -1

Number of modifıcations made to extend
payment plan

Standard ioans and otheri Loans and other receivable
receivables under ciose monitorin

Extended by 1 or 2 times
Extended by 3.4 or 5 times
Extendedby more than times
Total

8.38!

8.38!

Standard loans and otber [ Loans and other reccivables
Extc dc dpcriod of me receivables ı•pq•e ciose !T.9 nito n g
O-6o ş 1
6 :12

____ —— -

-

I-2Years -

2-SYears
5 Years and over J

Total 8,3891
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURKJSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCII 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othcnvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

c. Breakdown of Ioans according to their maturitles;

Stnndard Loons and Other Loııns and Ileceivables Under
Receivables Close 3loniloring

Loans and Other 1 Restructured or Loans and Other Restructurcd or
Cash Loans JÇÇIfl1 51
hort-Tcrm Loansudocrççeivnblcs_ _!P,4J —— —

Non-SpecializedLoans230.324j_ 1 -
-

SpecializedLoans-İ -!

____

—

Nledinm and Lnnj-Tcrm Lı,ans and Olher
Receivahles 57,049 — — —

Non-SpeciallzcdLoans
--

57,049
Specialized Laans -
Otlıer Receivables 1 — - — —

d. Information on consumer Ioans, individual credit cards, personnet Ioans and personnel
credit cards

None (31 December 2015: None).

e. Information on commercial insfalment Ioans and corporate credit cards:

- Medium and

--

ShortTerm,LoTcrm1 Tok!
Commercial inscallment loans-TC - 3.173 3,173

Busincssrcsidcndaiioans ___L______ —_______

Automobile Ioans - - 3.173 3,173

Consumcr Ioans — —
Other . —

________

Commercial installmenı Ioans- Indexed ta FC —
Busincssresiden6aIios __t_
Auiomobile Ioans

________

Consumer Ioans

_______

-T -
Other — — — —— —- — L —

Commercialinstallmentloans—FC - —: _:L
Businessresidcntial luans Z_ - :. —

Automobile Ioans —
Consumerloans -- -

Other . — —
Corporatecreditcards-TC -
Inslallment -
Non-Installment . -
Corporate eredit cards-FC - - - --

— — -

Installment . —
Non-lnsta!lmcnL . —
Oerdrafl accounts-VC (Cornmerciaj customer) - - - —
Oerdraü accounts.FC (Conımercial cuomcr) - : - —
Tolal - 3.173: 3.173
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEN’İENTS O1UGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTİON TRREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts arc expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (tL”) unlcss othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Nledium and
Prior Pcriod: 31 December 2015 - - - ShortTerrnLongTcrm Total

Cummercial installmenl Ioans-TC . 2,163 2,163
Busincss residenliai bant . . .

Automobile Ioans

__________

2.163 2.163
Consumer bant . -

Other . —:
Commercial installmcnt bant- bndexcd tü FC 1 . -

Business residential bant . —

Aulomobile bant . -

Consumerboan
.... -

— -1—--.——-
Other

_______ ________ ____________

. 1

_________

-

Commercial installment bant . FC -

Business residential bowıs

_____________________________ _______________

Aubomobile bant — -

Consumer loans -

Obher . . -

Corporatccrcdilcards-TC

_____ ___________

-— -

Ins(allmcnt . —

Non-Installmcnt -

Corporatccreditcards-FC
-

Instablmcnt
...

Non-bnstallment -

Ovcrdraft accounbs-TC (Commercial customer; -

Overdraft accounts-FC (Commercial customer) .

Tonu - 2,163 2,163

f. Loans according to types of borrowers:

31 March 2Ol 31 Dccember2O1

Public
- . - -

Private -

- .287.373L 245,74

Total 287,37 245,744

g. Distribution of domestic and foreign Ioans:

—. ! P1arch.2W 1Peçem.ber2!!i
- Domes6cLoaııs -

—

244,728

Forci2n Loans 42,645
Tuttu 287,37 245,734

k. Loans granted to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION TIIREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCII 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Specific provisions accounted for Ioans:

31 March 2OI 31 December 201
Loans and Receivables with Limited Co!ectabllity -
Loans and Receivables with DoublfulCoflectability - -
Uncollectible Loans and Receivables -
Total -

j. Information on non-performing loans (Net);

1. Information on non-performing Ioans restructured or reseheduled and other
receivables:

None (31 December 2O5: None).

2. Information on the movement of total non-performing Ioans:

‘JP!Q!_ IV. Groop
Lonns and Other Loans and Other
Receivahles wiih Receivables witb Uncoltectihle Loon,

Limited Collectabilijy Doubtfnl Collectability and OtIıcr Receivabicı
Prior Period End Balance: - - -
Additions (+) 1 - -
Transfers from Otlıcr CateQories of 1

Transfers ta Other Categories of
Non-PerfonningLoans(-)

— — _:

______

—

Collcctions (-) — - —
Write-offs (-) - - -

CorporaicandcommercialLoans.-
-

- RtailLons
CrediLCards

———-—-—-——___ :L.

____

Other -: -
Period End Bnlnnce: -: -
SpccıTıcPmvision-) — - -
Net Bolance on Balance Shevt Dale - —

3. Information on non-performing Ioans granted as foreign currency Ioans:

None (31 December2W5: None).
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED

İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.

NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (rL’) unless otherwise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4. İnformation on non-performing loans based on tşpes of borrowers:

Şp£LQm!’9ı:__ Z__:L________

k. İnformation on the collection policy of non-performing loans and other receivables and
information on the write..off policy of the Bank:

Non-performing loans and other receivables are collected through legal follow-up and
liquidation of collatemls. Credits that have becume losses in nature. are attached to the
certiflcate of insolvency or insuffıcient collateral document, and written off from the Bank’s
assets. However, ifthe Bank’s receivable k an insigniflcant amount compared to the costs and
expenses to be incurred for the preparation of said documents. writing off ofasseis may be
performed ifthe Board of Directors decides so. As of3l March 2016, there is no liquidation
or decrease in assets. (31 December 2015: None).

6. Information on held-to-maturity investments:
None (31 December 2015: None).

- IV. Groop 4’. Grouj
Loans and Otlıcıl
Rcccivahlcs wit1 LTncollcctihlc Loant

DoubtfoI Colicetahilih and Othcr Receivabler

l!.GrOU[

Lonns and Othcn
Receivubles witk

Limiled Colleçtabilihı

Currcnt Period (Nct) .

Laans aranted to corpomte Lmulıes
and realpersons LŞS0Ş!___f___ — -

-— :__.

______

Lnans granled 10 corporatc
enlities and
real pçrsnnsjç9 -—-.— - -

1

______

-

SpccilkProvisionsAmou) -j

________-

-I
Banla (Net) . •1

_______

Other Loans and Advances (Gmss) . -I
Specifle PrqvJsjqş ınJ_ —

. -r
OtherLoans and Mvancesf%cQ

_______________________________________________________

Loans granted to corporate entities
and real persons (Gross)

_____________________________________________________________

Loans granted tü eorporate

BanksÇ9şş)

____ _______ _______

fl________
SpeciflcProvisionsMırnunt(-) r

-___________

__________——

-1

Other Loans and Advances tGross) .j .1
SpcciflcProvisionsAmount(-)

________-I

—- z,.._ —

Other Loans and Advan(Net)
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLAT[ON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGİNALLY ISSUED
İN TURKJSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amcunıs are exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

7. Information on investments in associates:

None (31 December2ol5: None).

8. Information on subsidiaries (Net>:

None (31 December2ol5: None>.

9. Information on joint ventures:

None (31 December 2015: None>.

10. Information on kase receivabks (net):

None (31 December 2015: None).

İl. Information on hedging derivative financial assets:

None (31 December 2015: None).

12. Information on property and equipment:

Leased Fiıed Other Tangible;
Prior Period End:)! Decemher 2015 Immovoble Asscts flıed Assets; Total

-i 27! 716! 987

ccumulatcdDcpreciation(- ( 6) 347 33)
NetflookValuc Ş04
Current Pcrind End: 31 Murcl, 2016
Net BnnL VaIueaIthebcuinnin2ofthcPerjj - 135 369 — 504

\dditions - - 48: 18

p°”<-)’t
. —

lmpem
:ost ot PeHnd End - 271! 766: 1.037

tioI Endj_ ....A!ŞL.... —.

Ciosing Net Book Vuluc - 118! 388. 506

Leased Fized OtherTongihle
Pdor Periı>d End: 3! Deçemher 21)13 . Immovable :üstts. Fiıed Asseis Totül
:osı - 271: 456 727
-\ccumLilated Pepreciatio!:) -.

NetBookVolue - 203 -- 89 292
Current Period End: il Decemher 2015
Net Book Valuc ac the beginning of the Period - 203 89 292
Additions - - 334 334
Disposals(-Lnct

.,—., - (L ____jŞ)
Depreciatinn(-) j4)
lrnpainnent —-.-

— -

Cost nt Period End - 27! 716 987
Accumulated Depreciation ni Period End ( P) - - —

Closing Net BooL Value 135 369 504
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLWATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts ute expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira rTL’) unkss othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

13. Informations on intangible assets:

-
Period Pvioseri

31 Mareh 20I 31 December 20fl
Net boL Valuc aL the beginning of the
Period . 468i 191
[Additions l88 433

—. . — _._._._±..___:

Dcpreciation(
— .

_______

__(Ş)L._ __ş.ş>
Other 588( 468

14. Information on investment property:

None (3 1 December 20! 5: None).

15. Information on deferred ün asset:

The Bank calculates deferred tax asset or liability on the differences between the applied accounting
policies and valuation bases and tax legislation that comes from timing differences and reflects the
amount on the financial statements.

As of3l March 2016, the Bank caicuiated deferred tax asset amounting TL 170 and reflected this
amount to the financial statements (31 December 2015: TL 624).

in the situation that the difference between the book value and value subject to tax of the
assets that are subject to defened tax 15 related to equity accounts, defened tax asset or Iiabi!ity is
netted with the relevant accounts in (his group.

il March 20(6 31 Decembcr 2015
Tcmporarv Temporary

Differences of Difterences of
Deferred Tax Deferred Taxı Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

..L Şasş Amounn - fie Amount
Financial Ioss .1 1.239 247-
Provisionforcrnpioyeebenefıts J —- ŞZt. __J1% _Ş24 26.lj
ExpenseproysJons

—

2 4 4O
Other - 457j 92 .. 7381 142j

.--..— _M5% 2I2j t79!ı

Depreciation
—

j .J: -

Other (213)1 (42) (556 (ili)
Deferred Taz Liahihity, net

. ._

(42J

Deferreih Tnx Asset/ (LiabiIity), net 834 170, 3.145 627

16. Information on assets heid for resale and discontinued operations:

None (3 1 December 201 5: None).

17. Information on other assets:

As of 31 March 20! 6, other assets amount to TL 8,482(31 December 2015: TL 4,738) and don not
exceed 10% oftotal balance sheet except off balance sheet commitments.
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CONVEN[ENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORİGINALLY İSSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATJONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

11. EXPLAJSATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO LİABILITIES

1. Information on deposits:

The Bank has no deposits dııe to its nature as an investment bank.

2. Negative differences related to trading derivative fınancial Iiabilities:

3. Information on borrowings:

a. İnformation on banks and other financial institutions:

b.

31 Mü 2016 31 December .JŞ
.

Et TL. Et

BorrowingsfromthedflRT
---•-- -

From Domestic Banks and Institutions - 4.237 - 1.751
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and
Funds 7,°! 87 -
Total 7.098 82,224 -ı 71,311

İnformation on maturity structure of borrowings:

31

March 2016 31 December 2015

Et TL Et

Short-temı
.

Z928 -— 12380 -4
,Mediurn and Long-lerm

—
_t_69.841! 41.100

Total : 7.0981 82.224: -: 71.311:

e. Additional explanation related to the concentrations of the Bank’s major Iiabilities on
the basis of concentrations, fund providing customers, sector groups and other criteria
where risk concentration is ohsened

The Bank, funds its assets mainiv with its capitah and borrowings.

31 Nİareh 2016 31 December 2015

— -L m _cL__ TQ__C

Swa __.__.:L._.

______j...

iüI 28
Futures -!

_______

-I -
Opions

.

Other

______

- _i Jj -

Total - - 20 28
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORICINALLY ISSUED
İN TURIUSH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are exprcssed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless oıhenvise siated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4. Information on Repo Transacüons:

_31 March 2016
TL

.Financial InstituaLions 10.814 - --
—

Total 10,814 -: -! -

Sccurjtjcs Issued

None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on Borrower FunU:

UptoI 1 SYearand
Demand month. 1-3 Montb 3-12 N1o4 1-5 Year Over

31 March2Ol6 J .,_TTJ
rrowcrIünd 129 -

t---——31 December 2015
- — - -1

Bonower fund 10.272 -i -..————-.---

0, T - - —--————
r
mation on other foreign source:

As of3 1 Marclı 2016, other liabilitles amount to TL 8,713 (31 December 2015: TL 5,338) and
don’t exceed 10% oftotal balance sheet except off balance sheet commtments.

Information on financial lease agreements:

-

Cross

______

Net: Gross Net
LessThanl Year -.1 - -, -1-4 ears

-

MoreThan 4 Years
- .. - . -

Tahıl - - - -

9. Information on hedging derivative fınancial Iiabilities:

None (31 December 2015: None).

5.

6.

7-

8.

54



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURİUSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish LimÇtL’) unless othcnvise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Information on provisions:

a. Information on general provisions:

31 Mareh 20161 31 December 2015
- Provisions for GroupLLoans and Recdvables

-- -— .__1,727L
—

2.130
Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables wiih
Extended Marnrities

‘rovişjonjrOroupJİpswjçıvj5s --

Addilional l’rovision for Loons and Receivables with F -Extcnded Maturities
Provisions for Non Cash Loans 319j 253
Other 61 - 287

Cencral Provisions
- 3.i io 2,670

b. Information on provisions related with foreign cnrrency difference of foreign indexed
Ioans:

As of 31 March 2016, proivisions related with foreign currency difference of foreign indexed
Ioans amount 429 TL (31 December 2015: TL 167).

e. İnformation on specifıc provisions for non-cash Ioans that are non-funded and non
transformed into cash:

None (31 December 2015: None).

d. Information on other provisions:

1. Information on provisions for possible risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).

ii. Obligations related to employee rights:

in aceordance with Turkish Labour Law, the reserve has been calculated by estimating
the present value of the future probable obligation of the Bank arising from the retiremeni
of its employees. TAS 19 necessitates the actuarial valuation methods to calculate
liabilitles of enterprises. in this context, the foilowing actuarial assumptions were used in
the calculation of total liabilitles.

31 March2OI6 31 December2Ol5
Discount rate (%) 3.49: 3.49

The movement of employee termination benefits is shown below:

31 Nİareh 20l6 31 December2ol5
Balanceatthe Bjnning o[the Period 234 - - _160
Provisions Recoanised Durine ilie Pedod (84): 74
Balance at the end of the period 150 234

in addition. as of 31 Mareh 2016 the Bank Iıave unused vacation provision ofTL 104
(31 December 2015: TL 65).

iii. Other provisions are explained if they exceed 10% of the total provision balance

Other provisions amount ofTL 486; TL 324 15 for bonus provisions and TL 162 for
ongoing lawsuits and other. (31 December 2015: TL 1,333).
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATİON OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(ı\mounts are cxpressed in tiıousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unlcss othcrwise stated.)

EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

il. Information on taxes payable:

a. Information on current year tax Iiability:

1) Information on taı provision:

The Bank recognized TL 481. which is the remaining amount after the deduction of
temporan’ taxes paid in the period from corporate tax, to financial statements as current
tax Iiabilitv as of March 31,2016 (December 31,2015: None).

ii) Information on taxes payable:

31 Mareh 2016 31 December20l5

CorTaxPaxaP!e -

ITa’ationonMarkctableSccuritics
—

j_2.

- --

1
Bankin Insurance Transaction Tax (Bflt) 1621 81
Foreign ExchangeTransaction Ta

-

—

ValueAddedTaxPavable — 16, 89
OLher

_____

ıI2 235

iii) Information on premium payables:

____

ociaISecuriışPremiums—EmpIoyee 42J32
nciaI ırity Premiurns—Ernployer 1 __6L 31
[BankaIAidrensionFundPrernium- ÇppIqçç -I -

Bant Social Aid Pension Fund ?rım:Rlsyz_Z
PiembeçipFceandPoyisions- Employee -______

___________

PcnsionFundNkrnbership Fees and Provisions -Employer —

Uncmploymcnt !nsyrancezEıployee 3 — ___2
Unernployrnent Insurance— Employer 6 4
Jıher

fotal 97 75

b. Information on deferred tax Iiabilitv:

Explanations on the taxation of the Bank are presented in explanations and notes related to
unconsolidated assets.

12. Liabilities for assets held for sale and assets of discontinued operations

None (31 December 2015: None).
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLİDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
İN TURMSH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts am expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (tL”) unless othenvise stated,)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

13. İnformation on the quantity, maturity date, interest rate and supplier firm of the
subordinated Ioans giyen to the hank and transactional option if there are any marketable
securities

None (31 December20l5: None).

14. İnformation on shareholders’ equity:

a. Presentation of paid-in capital:

31 March 2016 31 December20l5
Common Stock 255,000255,000
PreIrred Stock -

b. Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is
applied and ifso, amount of registered share capital ceiling:

The Bank does not apply the registered slıare capital system.

e. Information on share capital increases and their sources; other relevant information on
increased share capital in current period:

None (3! December 2015: None).

d. Explanation on the transfers from capital reserve to paid-in capital in the current
period:

None (3! December 2015: None).

e. Information on capital commitments, the general purpose and the estimated sources for
these commitments until the end of the fiscal year and the subsequent interim period:

None (31 December 2015: None).

f. İnformation on the Bank’s income, profıtability, prior period indicators on liquidity and
uncertainty on these indicators and their potential effects on the Bank’s capital:

The Bank considers tlıere is no uncertainty regarding the prior period income, profltability and
liquidity indicators; therefore the Bank does not foresee an effect on capital.

g. Summary information about privileged shares representing the capital:

None (31 December 2015: None).

it. Information on marketable securities value increase fund:

il March 2016 31 December 2015
TLr EC TL FC

Umm Subsidiaries, Afliliates and Joint ventumes .

Valuation diiference (39) . (90)
Rate diITerenct . . -

Fotal (39 (90
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CONVENİENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLİCLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGİNALLY İSSUED
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PASHA YATİİUM BANKASI A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are cxprcssed in thousands oITurkish Lira (“TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

111. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

1. İnformation on off-balance sheet commitments:

a. The amount and type of irrevocable commitments:

Irrevocable Commitments
31 March 2016 31 December2ül5

Fonvard ASSLI purLhase and saI commıtmtnts 16 912
Fonvard Deposit purchasc and sale commitmcnts - 2,009
Tax and Ibnd Iiabilities fwm expofl commilment 34 25

Other lrrcvocablc commitmcnts - -

Tntn 34 18,936

k Type and amount of probable Iosses and obligations arising from off-balance sheet items

1. Non-cash Ioans including guarantees, bank acceptances, collaterais and others that
are accepted as financial commitmeııts and other lefter of credits:

As of3 1 March 2016. the Bank has guarantee and indemnities amounting TL 159,888(31
December 2015: TL 126,995) based upon the guanntee lerter.

2. Revocable, irrevocable guanntees and other similar commitments and contingencies

None (31 December 2015: None).

c. Total amount of non-cash Ioans:

31 March 20161 31 December 2015
Noch Loans Giyen aainstCash Laans

-

With Original Maturiiy of 1 Year or Less Than 1 Year -

WithOriQinalMaturjtvofMoreThanlyear
—

OtherNon-cash Loans
—

Total 159,8881 126,995

d. Information on sectoral risk concentrations of non-cash Ioans:

Curreni Period I’rior Pcriod
31 %Iarch 2016 31 December 2015

— .L ZRZ ı%kg LPZJ)L
Agricultorni -

— - .._:LzL:
Fanning and 1aifl - —

—--—- L — --—

Foresn -: - - .

Fishint
—-—---—. - - ----1——--

Manufnclnring
.

!,fr7i..__i,7 1ŞŞ2 21S4I.8451 3.09I 14,6861 1.81
Minin

. .

-L
Prnduction 1.318 :2 1f İ7QL.. 290 14.686{ 2!!l
Elcctric, Gas and Watcr 299 033 . 115, 0 19
Constrnctiorı (.080] !.-.!.7 ,.7 Ş *37 Sj Ç92.L_
Servicts 89.244 97.08 33,333 63.78 54,69<) 91.66 35,7(5 67.89
Wlıolcsalc and Retail Trade 29A10 iL? 17 708 26A)6 4 1; 5571 20,651 97•
IoIcI. Food and Bcvcraue Services 1.005 . s.1 u: .s7 -

-

TransponatinnandTdccommunica6on 9200 1001 423 062 - -. 2,71103
Financial Instituıions 36.129 39.30 22,912 33.72 16.337 2738 22.350 33(9
Real EstatcandLcasinScrvices 90 Ü MQ .J 9
Scll-LmploymcntScrvices

- . . --

[ducaLion Scn’iccs - . -

IlcahhandSocialScrviccs
- — —. ._ -

Other . — . -

Total 91,941 100.00 67,947 100.00 59,665 100.00 6733<) 100.00
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e. Information on the non-cash Ioans classifıed in Group 1 and Group İİ:

31 Mnrch2I6 L - ÇL!.° upil
- FC

Qon-Cnsh Lonns 91,941j 67,947 -

Letıers ofGuaranLce 91,940 43,074 . —

BankAcceptances j-....._._z
Lettcrs ofCredit 24,873 . —

d9lşeJ119nt
— —-— ——_,-.——

Underwritingcommiıments
FaeıorinuGuaranees

-,. z. -

Oıher CommiLments and Contingencics - -: - -

2. Information on derivative transaçtions:

_________

31 Mareh 2016 31 Decemher20l5
Forward foreign curreny purchase - . 3,835
transactions

_________

Fonvard foreign curreny seli - . 3,794
transactions

_______

Currency swap-buy 12,160 32.122
Currency swap-seli 11,300 3 1,465
Toplam 23,460 71,215

3. Information on eredit derivatives and related imposed risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).

4. Information on Contingcnt Assets and Liabllities:

(t) Conlingenı assets

None

(iı) Conıinge>zı liabillıles

As of3 1 March 2016. the Bank has reflected the provision for its ongoing lawsuits amounting
TL 137 to the ünancial statements. The process regarding the Iaw suits 15 stili ongoing and
decisions wilI be tinalised after trial.

The Bank issııed indernniication Ietters in favourof its members of Board of Directors to protect
thern against possible ciairns.

5. Information on services in the name of others’ names and accounts:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

IV. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO İNCOME STATEMENT

1. İnformation on interest income:

a. Information on interest income on Ioans:

: 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
TL EC TL Et

Short-tcrm Loans 6,679 156 1,921 58
Mcdium/Lcng-term Loaııs 233 553
IntcrestonLoans UnderFollow-up

- -

Prcmiums Received from Resource Utilisation
SupportFund

- - - - -

Total 6.912 7141 1,921) 58

Information on interest income on banks:

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

.__jıL__ıç
Erom (hc CBRT ()

_______

441 .1 -

From Domestic Banks 37
-

2,308
From ForeinBanks 13(4

.

Şj) 3
lleadquariersandBranchesAbroad

— —

Total 48 . 2,37 4
ilie ınwrsI rceived on required reserves oFTL nd USD curencies is accounied under “froı,, CBRT’ account

c. Information on interest income on marketable securities:

31 Mareh 2016 31 Mareh 2015
ni FC Tü Et

FromTradiıwFinancialAssc(s t :..
[‘rum Financial Asseis in Fair Valuc (hrough Prolit or
Loss 1 -

[‘rum Availablc-for-saIe Financial Assets 505) 4 582)
[‘rum [IcId-Lo-Maturiiv Investmenls — — -i
roıaı 505 582 -

d. İnformation on interest income received from investments in associates and suhsidiarles:

None (31 Mareh 2015: None).
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PASHA YATİRİM BANKASI A.Ş.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2. Information on interest expense:

a. Information on interest expense on borrowings:

3lMnrch2OlG 3lMarch2Ol5

T T 1

Banks 1 341 1 65

The CURT . . . -

Domestic Banks lE 5 1 -

Fqçigntnjs_ j 9 54 65

Headquarters and BranchesAbr ı — -

Otherlnstitutions .,

Total 569 1 65

b. İnformation on interest expense giyen to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (31 Mareh 201 5: None).

c. Maturity structure of the interest expense on deposits:

None (3 1 March 201 5: None).

d. Interest expense on issued marketable securities:

None (3 1 Mareh 201 5: None).

3. Information on dividend income:

None (3 1 Mareh 201 5: None).

4. Information on trading income/Ioss (Net):

>A signilicant part of gam and loss from derivative ünancial transactions are sourcing from foreign exchange changes
since derivative flnancial transactions made by the bank have short-term maturitles.

Income
locome from Capital Market Transactions
lncome from Derivative Financial Transactions (*)

Foreign Exchange Gains
Loss (-) ..

Loss from Capital Market Transaetions
Loss from Derivative Financial Transactions (*)

Foreign Exchange Loss

31 March 2OI6 31 March 2015

1!2 .4
4

zÇ?.
3.270 !..652
3,867 12,630

464
420 2.206

3.447 9.958
377 1,102
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5. Information on other operating income:

Other operating income inclııdes cancellation ofTL 7 per participant addendum, other operating
income consists of TL 105 income from previous years’ provision cancellations addendum and
there is no income regarding extraordinary accounts. (31 March 2015: TL 2)

6. Provjsjon expenses related to Ioans and other receivables:

-

___

ili. Grou2Loans and ReceivbIes -

L lV.GroupLoansaadRcceiables
- ..L__.L__ -

-

General Pro1sion ENpenses 440 488
Proviston Expcnseforfossiblekisks

— - -

Marketahle SecurhieslmpairmentExpense

________

Financial Assets al Fair Valuc Throuah Profıt or Loss - -

Available-lbr-sale Financial Asscts - -

lnvestmcnts in Associales, Subsidiaries and Held-to
Maturiiy Securilics Valuc Decreue - - -

- Investmentsin Associates - -

Subsidiarics
-

Joint Ventures
-

Held-to-Maturity lnvestments -

Other
-

Total 330 388

Information related to other operating cxpenses:

-- 3lMarch İ6 31 March 2015
PnneiExpescs — 1892 1289
ReserveForErnployceTerminationBcnctits 6O -— 27
BanL Social Ait! Pension Fuat! Delicit Provision

_______.

-

Impairrnent Expenses of Fixed Assets
Depreciation Expenses ofFixedAssets

-__________ --
27

Impairment Expenses çjtqJAsscts
—

Goodwill impafrmentexpenses
-

\mortisation Expenses a lınangibIe Assets 32
tmpairment Expenses of Equity Pafticipations lbr which

ty MethodisAppiied
— .

lmpairrnent Expenses of Assets Heid For Resak - - -

-

Depreciation ExpcnsşofAssets 1-cid for Resale
- -

impairmeni Expenses of PixedAssetsl-leid forS-ak
- -

OtrPp!raLintExpenses
— —

l239_ - - -

•Op9rationa Lease Expenses
—

3M 265
MaintenanccExpenses

. — .

—
-

-

- Advertising Expcnses
- -—

195:
-- OıherExpense

—
687: 462

Loss on Sales of Asseis -: -

Other 232 554
Tahıl 3,5471 2,657
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

8. Information on income/(Ioss) before tax from continuing or discontinued operations:

Loss before tax comes from net interest income amounting TL 7,496, net commission fee income
amounting TL 261, trading Ioss amounhing TL 377, other operating income amounting TL 117,
provision for ban losses and other receivables amoıınting to TL 440 and otlıer operating expenses
amounting TL 3,547.

9. İnformation on provision for taxes from continuing or discontinued operations:

As of 3! March 2016 the Bank has current fax expense TL 481(31 Mareh 2015: None). The Bank
has defered tax Ioss amounting to TL 417 (31 March 2015: TL 485).

As of 3! March 2016, the Bank doesn’t liave any discontinued operations.

10. İnformation on net income/(loss) from continuing or discontinued operations:

The Bank doesn’t have discontinued operations. The Bank’s net proüt from continuing operations
amounting to TL 3,366 (31 March 2015: TL 1,397 Ioss).

11. İnformation on net income/(Ioss) for the period:

a. If the disclosure of ordinary banking transactions and the composition of income and
eıpense items is necessary to understand the annual performance of Bank, the
composition and amount of these items:

None (31 March 2015: None).

b. If an accounting estimate change signifıcantly affects the profitlloss in the current period
or has a probability to significantly affect the profit/Ioss in the subsequent periods, the
overali effect is disclosed:

There 15 no signiflcant change in accounting estimates which would affect the curent or the
subsequent periods.

12. Disclosure of 20% of sub-accounts in the case of other line items exceed 10% of the income
statement total.

Information related to other income and disclosure and footnotes related to income statement and
information related to other expenses and discbosure and footnotes related to income statement are
presented in Footnote nıırnbered 5 and footnote numbered 7 respectively.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

V. EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CHANGES İN THE
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUİTY

1. İnformation on available-for-sale financial assets:

“Unrealized gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of securities classifled as
available-for-sale are not recognized in current year income statements; they are recognized in the
“Marketable secıırities value increase fund” account under equity, unlu the fınancial assets are sold,
disposed or impaired.

There is loss for marketable securities valuation difference related to available-for-sale financial
assets ofTL 39(32 December 2015: TL 90).

2. Amounts transferred to legal resenes:

The Bank has rio amounts transferred to legal resen’es for cunenr period.

3. İnformation on distribution of profit:

No dividend distribution has been announced after the balance sheet date.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

YI. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. İnformation on cash and cash equivalents:

Components of cash and cash equivalents and the accounting policy applied in their
determination:

The effect of any change in the accounıing policy of current period and the balance sheet recorded
amounts of the components İhat make up cash and cash equivalents (excluding rediscount balances,
reserve requirements, placements with maturitv longer than 3 months and blocked accounts) are
considered as cash and cash equivalents.

a. Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the period:

31 Nlarch 2016 31 Nlarch 2015

Cash : 18365 - 2.587
Cash. Forciun Currencv and Other 13: 8

T£.k

_____ _____

___J________ 357
Other

_____________ ______

1 -

________ ___

Lı68l 100.655
lnterbank Money Market Placenents 16.505

Blockedamounıs on cash and cash cquivalents

Interestincome rediscounts on cash
Cashequivalents witha myrityionerthantkcçm9ntl__

— _

Unresıricıcdresenedeposits

Cash FIow Statements Casb and Cnsh Eguivalents 23.181 117.290

2. Explanation about other cash flows items and the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
on cash and cash equivalents:

The “Other” items presented in “Net operating income before changes in operating assets and
Iiabilities” amount to TL 3,597 (31 March 2015: TL 1.138) mainlv consists foreign exchange gam
and Ioss hems and other operating expenses excluding kes and commissions paid. trading
gains/losses and other operating expenses excluding personnel expenses.

The Net increase/decrease in otlıer Iiabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
habilities” arnounting to TL 4,261(31 March 2015: TL 2,637) consists of mainiy changes in
prepaid expenses aınd other assets.

The “Net increase/decrease in otlıer Iiabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
Iiabilities” amounting to TL 3,525 (31 March 2015: 3.1 Ol) consists of mainiy changes in
rniscellaneous payables, other Iiabilities and taxes and other duties payable.
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EXPLANATİONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Vİİ. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE BANK’S RİSK GROUP

1. The volume of transactions relating to the Bank’s risk group, outstanding ban and deposit
transactions and profit and loss of the period:

a. Current Period (31 March 2016):

Other real and legal persons ilin
Inyestmcnts in Associates Direct and indircet shıırehoIder liave heen ineluded in the risi

Hanks’ Risk Group subsidiaries and joint venlure! of the Banid groiq
Casi Non—Casi Cash! Nna—Casl CasIJ Non—CasI

Loans and Other 1 t
Receivables

. .. .

Heginning of the
Period .

End of the Period - - - 22.652 - -

Inlerest and Commissiori
Income Received - — 6 1 - -

PreviousPeriod(3İ December2Ol5):

Other mil and legal persons ilin
Investmen(s in Assneiates Direct and indircet sharehoIder liave heen ineluded in the risl

.!l< !!k Çr’!’ p ps ç•s aqd jq[9t re ir ıh gr

: CasI Non-CasI Casl Non-Casl Cashf
Loans and Other

!y*i. ,4.... .
Beginningofthe
Period - - -L - -

End of the Period - . . 22,475! 8,082 30,227
Inlerest and
Commission Income
Received - -, 98 74 40

b. İnformation on deposits of the Bank’s risk group:

The Bank doesn’t have any deposits since it k an investment bank.

c. Information on fonvard and option agreements and other similar agreements made with
the Bank’s risk group:

No option and forward aggreements with the Bank’s Risk Group. (31 December2ül5: None).

As of 31 March 2016, there k no amount for current account of risk groııp (3! December
2015: TL 10,213).

Banka’nın 3! Mart 2016 tarihi itibarıyla 69,843 TL risk grııbundan alınan kredisi ve 893 TL
faiz reeskontu bakiyesi bulunmaktadır.

d. Information on key management compensation:

As of 31 March 2016, key management compensation amount is TL 939 (31 March 2015: TL
303).

VIİİ. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE DOMESTİC, FOREİGN, OFF-SHORE
BRANCHES AND FOREİGN REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BANK

None (31 December 2015: None).
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SECTİON SIX

OTHER EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES

1. OTHER EXPLANATLONS RELATED TO OPERATİONS OF THE BANK

None.

İİ. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.

111. EXPLANATİONS ON REVİEW REPORT

The unconsolidated Fınancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
reviewed by Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
(ELcY) and the independent auditor’s review report dated 06 May 2016 has been presented
with the unconsolidated financial statements.

IV. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES PREPARED EY INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

None (3 December 2015: None).
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SECTİON SEVEN
İNFORMATİON ON İNTERIM ACTİVITY REPORT

Message from the Chairman

in aceordance with our targets and strategy, we have completed the first quarter of 2016 with a profit
ofTL 3.3 million, going up 141% by comparison with the same period of previous year.

We preserved the quality of our assets, expanded our credits and balance sheet in a steady manner
while the wise strategies are crucial in this period.

As ve have been providing more support to our customers and the Turkish economy with our
available funds, we also have continued to grow our customer portfolio.

We have accelerated our activities to increase and diversil’ our funding sources and stepped forward
in line with our priority For sustainable growth so as to focused on increasing the operational
efficiency, whilst we fulfihled our target for sustainable profitability in this quarter.

in parallel to our corporate communication strategy, our Bank has begun PR activities in 2016, in
order to increase recognition of the PASHA Bank brand among the target audience and continued to
reinforce brand awareness by holding up meetings with various institutions in the period.

The introduction meeting heid in February with the members of the press have attracted huge interest
of Foreign and domestic press, thus reflected with a wide media coverage.

We think that the worst adversities are left behind for economies of both Turkey and Azerbaijan in the
last year and ve anticipate positive sentiments for the rest of the year.

Cur operations, ever increasing cooperation among Turkey-Azerbaijan-Georgia and the synergy
among our three hanks positioned in this triangle has been reinforcing our faith to gam higher share in
the trade and investment volume increasing in our target region. 1 am looking forward to have an
operating period with positive developments refiected in the forthcoming quarters and towards its
economic potential; the trade relations among Turkey-Azerbaijan-Georgia are enhanced and the long
termjoint projects are increasingly continued.

Sincerely Yours,

Agha Ali Kamalov
Chairman
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Message from the General Manager

Global markets, having a temperate start to 2016, proceeded illa positive manner in the first quarter
tlıanks to strong recovery in oii prices. strong signals giyen by the Federal Reserve System FED that it
wilI not be so aggressive in interest rate hikes, steps taken by the European Central Bank towards
expansion and increase in global risk appetite. Recoveıy in TL assets occurring with the effect of
strong cash infiow 10 Turkish capital markets from foreign investors has giyen a boost to the markets.
TL has gained an appreciation against USD ata ratio of3% while the depreciation in bond yields
continues (11% to 9.50%). The economy of Turkey had a growth of 4% in 2015 and the growih seems
to be going on thanks to posilive signais in industn’ production data within the first quaner of 20 6.
The infiation decreasing below 7,5% on an annual basis and steps taken by Central Bank ofTurkey
continues to give hope to the markets.

\Ve see that temperate growıh trend in banking sector continues with ali the abovementioned
deveiopments. Turkish Banking sector preserved its capital adequac mtio which is between 14-15%
with its strong capital structure and asset quality and the profitabilitv of the sector is stili going on.
PASHA Bank. maintained its profitability within the first quarter of the year. which was above the
targets of2015. During the first quarter of 2016, our assets and tom! credits have expanded ata ratio of
7.84% and 20% respectively and sve have eamed a profit atan amount ofTL3.3 million.

During ilie aforementioned period. ve acceierated our advertisement activities in order to increase
brand awareness of PASHA Bank and to reach our investors making investments in Turkey
Azerbaijan-Georgia triangie. Ve iıeld a press conference. attended paneis and show up in local and
foreign media organizations. Ve have expanded our customer portfolio thanks to our promotion
activities and our strong financial statements of 2015 and increased our resource diversiw. Our
investments to human resources and İT systems has continued in the first quarter of 2016 and ve are
pianning to perform our first bond issue in the second hahf of 2016. We conserve our aim to support
the development of foreign trade volume between Turkey — Azerbaijan — Georgia and lo be the first
Bank comes inlo the minds of investors making investments in the region. We wish that the remaining
period of 2016 wilİ be in a positive manner for alI the banking sector.

H.Cenk Eynehan
General Manager and Board Member
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A. ENTRY

1. Amendments made in Articles of İncorporation within the period

There 15 flO amendment in the Articles of Incorporation within the period.

2. Significant Evenis and Transactions within the Period

There 15 no signiflcant ehange related tü inforrnaİion except for the disclosures including
numeric infomıation in financial statements included in annual activity report prepared in
accordance with Regulation on Procedures and Principals related tü Preparation and
Publication of Activity Report.

B. NON-CONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL İNFORMATİON AND İST QUARTER
REYlEWS

(KTL) 31 Niareh 2016 31 December2ol5

Cash assets and Central Bank 18,365 12.663
Markelable Securities in the tradebook 768 604
Markerable Securities 12.668 9,619
Payables to Monev market and Banks 18.681 17,357
Loans 287,373 245,744
Related Company

-

Other Assets 9,827 6.418

Total Assets 347,682 322,405

Credits obtaiııed 89,322 71,31 1
Payables to Money market 10,814 -

Other Liabilities 13,577 20,542
Paid in Capilal 255,000 255.000
Profit Resenes 324 324
Marketable Securities Valuation Difference (39) (90)
Aceumulated profıt / Ioss (24,682) (33,469)
Net Protit / Loss 3,366 8,787

Total Liabllities 347,682 322,405
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
L’NCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

İN TURKISH, SEE NOTE İ OF SECTİON THREE

PASHA YATİRIM BANKASİ A.Ş.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLİDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS AT 31 MARCH 2016
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL”) unless othenvise stated.)

8. NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL INFORMATION AND IST QUARTER REVIEWS

PASHA BANK İST QUARTER REVİEWS

The Bank has completed first quaner of 2016 with a profil number ofTL 3,366 according to non
consolidated dara. TornI non-consolidated assets of the Bank are TL 347,682 with a 7.8%
increase compared to 2015 year-end. The Bankcontinues its operations tlırough headquarters
units as of Match 3 1, 2016.

The share of our securiijes in balance sheet 1s3.64%. The credits are TL 287,373 increasing ata
ratio of 16.94% compared to year end of 2015. The share ofcredits in total assets is 82.65%.

The non-consolidated capital adequacy ratio ofthe Bank is 71.79% as ofMarch 31,2016.

The bank has a strong financial structure thanks to its strong capital and asset quality.

C. EXPECTATIONS of PASR4 BANKREGARDING 2016

Pasha Bank presen’es it expectations included in activity report of 2016 and anticipates an
inflation rate of 7.5-8% and an economic growth of3.5-4% in Turkey. The Bank also anticipates
that the ratio of current defıcitto GDP wilI be 4-4.5% and unemployment rate of 10.50%.
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